Florida Commission for the Florida Commission for the

/ PUTNAM COUNTY /

Transportation Transportation

Disadvantaged 1T RANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED Disadvantaged
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD (LCB) QUARTERLY MEETING

MEETING AGENDA
Putnam County Planning & Development Conference Room
2509 Crill Avenue, Suite 300, Palatka, Florida, 32177
Teams Meeting ID: 226 086 248 476 0
Passcode: hP9g4LLR9

Monday, September 15, 2025, at 10:30 a.m.
*Denotes Required Action Item

Welcome, Call to Order, Roll Call/Quorum Review — Chair Wilkinson
Additions, Deletions, and Changes to the Agenda — Chair Wilkinson
Approval of May 19, 2025, Meeting Minutes — Chair Wilkinson * (pg.2-7)
LCB Membership (pg.8)
Northeast Florida Regional Council Update — Ms. Jones
a. TDSP Annual Review (Roll Call Vote)* (pg.9-41)
b. TD 101 (pg.42-48)
c. RFP Timeline (pg.49)
6. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) System Update — Mr. Thompson

AN S

a. Annual Operation Report*
b. 2025-2026 Rate Model*(pg.50-61)
c. CTC Quarterly Update
d. Grants Update* (Approval if required)
Old Business
New Business
Public Comment — LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER

10. Member and Department Reports
11.  Adjournment — Chair Wilkinson

Next LCB Meeting: November 17, 2025, at 10:30 a.m.
Putnam County Planning & Development Conference Room,
2509 Crill Avenue, Suite 300, Palatka, Florida, 32177



Florida Commission for the

Putnam County Transportation Disadvantaged
Local Coordinating Board Quarterly Meeting

Transportation Monday, May 19, 2025

Disadvantaged

Northeast Florida Regional Council
Elizabeth Payne, AICP
Chief Executive Officer

Putnam County Commission
Hon. Leota Wilkinson, Chair

Florida Transportation
Disadvantaged Commission
Monica Russell, Chair

MINUTES

*Denotes Required Action Item

1. Welcome, Call to Order, Roll Call/Quorum Review

A quarterly meeting of the Putnam County Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Local Coordinating Board
(LCB) was held in person and virtually via Zoom on Monday, May 19, 2025. Chair Leota Wilkinson

called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. with the following members present:

Representing:

Voting Member:

Elected Official/Chair

Leota Wilkinson (In-person)

Florida Department of Transportation

Geanelly Reveron (Virtual)

Department of Children and Families

Christina Gillis (Virtual)

Citizen Advocate/Non-User

Christopher Glymph (In-person)

Citizen Advocate/User

Darlene Laibl-Crowe (Virtual)

Agency for Health Care Administration

Pamela Hagley (Virtual)

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

Sheryl Stanford (Virtual)

Workforce Development

Marc Albert (In-person)

Members Not Present

Public Education Sharon Spell
Department of Education Voc. Rehab. Rochelle Price
Veterans Allen Buquo

Medical Community

Nancy Russo

Community Transportation Coordinator Staff Present

Boyd Thompson, MariCarmen Beltran (In-Person)

Planning Agency Staff Present

Summer Jones, Andrew Prokopiak (In-Person)




Guests
None

After a roll call took place, a quorum was met.

. Additions, Deletions, and Changes to the Agenda

There were no changes to the agenda.

. Approval of November 18. 2024. and February 10, 2025. Public Hearing and Meeting Minutes*

Mr. Glymph motioned for the approval of the November 18, 2024, and the February 10, 2025, public
hearing and meeting minutes. Mr. Albert seconded the motion. The public hearing and meeting minutes
were approved unanimously.

. Election of Vice-Chair*

Mr. Glymph volunteered to serve as Vice Chair for another term. Mr. Albert motioned to approve Mr.
Glymph as the Vice Chair. Ms. Hagley seconded the motion. The motion was passed unanimously.

. Grievance Committee Appointments*

Ms. Jones explained the need for the Grievance Committee. Mr. Albert and Ms. Russo were nominated to
serve another term. Mr. Glymph volunteered to serve on the committee. Mr. Albert made a motion to
approve with a second from Ms. Hagley. The re-appointment of Mr. Albert and Ms. Russo and the
appointment of Mr. Glymph passed unanimously.

. Evaluation Committee Appointments*

Ms. Jones explained the need for the Evaluation Committee. Ms. Spell and Mr. Albert were nominated to
serve on the committee for another term. Chair Wilkinson, Mr. Glymph, and Ms. Stanford volunteered to
serve on the Evaluation Committee. Mr. Albert motioned to approve the reappointment of himself and
Ms. Spell and the appointment of Chair Wilkinson, Mr. Glymph, and Ms. Stanford for the Evaluation
Committee. Ms. Stanford seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

. LCB Membership — Review/Approval*

LCB Membership was considered next. Ms. Joyner-Howard will need to be removed from the roster, as
she has retired. Ms. Reveron stated Heather Fish can replace Ms. Joyner-Howard. Ms. Murray will need
to be removed from the roster as she is no longer with the Northeast Florida Community Action. There
was a motion to approve the LCB Membership with the changes from Mr. Albert and a second from Mr.
Glymph. The LCB Membership passed unanimously.

. Annual Review of Bylaws —

The next item for consideration was the Annual Review of the Bylaws. There were no changes to the
Bylaws. Mr. Albert motioned for the approval of the Annual Review of the Bylaws, with a second from
Ms. Hagley. The Annual Review of the Bylaws was passed unanimously.

. Northeast Florida Regional Council Update

a.) TDSP Annual Review (Roll Call Vote) *



Ms. Jones stated the next item for review is the TDSP annual review. She stated she believes the
demographics should be updated. It is dated back to 2018. The LCB members agreed and asked that the
TDSP be updated before they approve the TDSP annual review. There was a motion to table the TDSP
annual review until the next LCB meeting by Mr. Glymph and a second from Ms. Hagley.

b.) Proposed Meeting Schedule*

Ms. Jones reviewed the proposed meeting schedule: 10:30am on the 3 Monday Quarterly, 2™ Monday
in February: 9/15/25, 11/17/25, 2/09/26, 5/18/26, 9/21/26 and the proposed LCB Public Annual Hearing
— 2" Monday in February 2/9/26.

Mr. Glymph motioned to approve the proposed meeting schedule. Mr. Albert seconded the motion. The
motion was approved unanimously.

c.) CTC Evaluation*

Ms. Jones reviewed the results of this year’s CTC evaluation. There were no reported findings. Ms.
Hagley motioned to approve the annual evaluation. Mr. Glymph seconded the motion. The annual
evaluation passed unanimously.

Ms. Jones mentioned this will be the last meeting conducted on Zoom. Moving forward, the Teams will
be utilized for the virtual portion of the meetings.

10. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) System Update
a) 2024-2025 Rate Model*: The 2024-2025 ambulatory rate is $4.75, an increase from $3.47. The
wheelchair rate is $8.15, an increase from $5.94.

There was a discussion regarding bus passes and how they work. Typically, those who frequently ride
and know approximately how many trips they will need, are issued bus passes.

There was a motion to approve the 2024-2025 rate model from Mr. Albert and a second from Mr.
Glymph. The motion passed unanimously.

b) Mr. Thompson gave the quarterly update:
e January 2025 there was a total of 1,283 trips.
e February 2025 there was a total of 1,265 trips.
e March 2025 there was a total of 1,168 trips.

¢) Grants Update: There were no grants updates.
There was a discussion about Medicaid and how the discontinuation of Medicaid utilizing the
Transportation Disadvantaged program for transportation has disrupted the flow of funding. It would be

ideal to find a replacement for that funding and/or a new funding source.

There was also a discussion about the need for a standardized cost allocation model.



Ms. Beltran mentioned that beginning on April 1%, they opened the city bus to the public on Tuesdays
and Thursdays for 4 hours and $1 per trip.

11. Old Business

There was no old business.

12. New Business

There was no new business.

13. Public Comment

There was no public comment.

14. Member and Department Reports

FDOT — Ms. Reveron stated the deadline for submission for the FY 2026/2027 Public Transit Service
Development Program Funding is close of business on Friday, May 30, 2025

15. Adjournment

Ms. Wilkinson adjourned the meeting at 11:36 a.m. The next LCB meeting will take place on September
15, 2025, at 10:30 a.m. in the Putnam County Planning and Development Conference Room.



ATTENDANCE RECORD
PUTNAM COUNTY

LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD

Position Name/Alt. sroo5 | o5 | 1118124 | 916124
Commissioner P a a
1. Chairperson Wilkinson/Gemmissioner- a
2. Dept. of Transportation Geanelly Reveron | Christina P P P P
3. Dept. Of Children and Families Christina Gillis / John Wisker P P a P
4. Public Education Sharon Spell a a a P
5. Vocational Rehab. (Dept. Ed.) Rochelle Price a a a a
6. Veteran Services Allen Buguo a a a P
7. Community Action(Econ. Disadv) VACANT-Cyperiannia-Murray - a P a
8. Elderly VACANT/EWW . . a a
9. Disabled Vacant/Brenda-Lang - - a a
10. Citizen Advocate/User Darlene Laibl-Crowe P a P P
11. Citizen Advocate/Non-User Christopher Glymph P P P P
12. Children at Risk Vacant - - - -
13. Dept. Of Elder Affairs Vacant - - - -
14. Private for Profit Transportation Vacant - - - -
15. Agency for Health Care Adm. Pamela Hagley / Reeda Harris P P P
16. Agency for Persons wiDisabilities | SMe! Stanford / Diana Burgos- P a a P
17. Regional Workforce Dev. Brd. Marc Albert P a P P
18. Local Medical Community Nancy Russo a a P a
VACANT
Community Action (Econ. Disadvantaged)
Elderly
Disabled

Children at Risk

Private for Profit Transportation

El

der Affairs




PLEASE SIGN IN!

Transportation
Disadvantaged

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED

COMMISSION FOR THE

Date:
Time:

May 19, 2025
10:30 a.m.

Putnam County Government Complex, 2509 Crill Avenue, Palatka, FL 32177

AUl (Pnes NETKC §)nes @Nefic-ur
Mﬁ VI{/Q’%Z‘( /f] /g:@ </\A¢/¢mﬂ‘f@/YCi'éwoCOM
/’)’@v/ pﬁukO//o/C /\/EFA)C mf/ym& ‘oé(c/f)/c/(m /UL /\@ cf}

%@v@ \"ﬁﬂa‘?‘- =

il 4\1 \&g\a\%‘ﬁ\\

L

\o@é@é\w@ o

ﬂweﬂ &ﬁﬁaﬂ

1t ({

L\/edmuﬁ\ WAmeon

\eota W VKingom £ rnam-

maemaw @%cﬂ%@w‘gw

Cangeisoxnez N E FC

‘{CO N9 Glle €

MABERT @ Cavesiraume il

J;\Aﬁuz, Mloeck

Page 1



Grievance

Committe Evaluation

Salutation  First Name Last Name Organization Representing e Committee Comments VC Expire
PUTNAM COUNTY

Hon. Leota Wilkinson Putnam Co Board of County Commissioners leota.wilkinson@putnam-fl.gov; Elected Official Voting Member Feb-26 Chair

Ms. Geanelly Reveron FDOT, District 2 Geanelly.Reveron@dot.state.fl.us; FDOT Voting Member

Ms. Janell Damato FDOT, District 2 janell.damato@dot.state.fl.us; FDOT Alternate

Ms. Heather Fish FDOT, District 2 heather.fish@dot.state.fl.us; FDOT Alternate

Ms. Chris Nalsen FDOT, District 2 christina.nalsen@dot.state.fl.us; FDOT Alternate

Ms. Lauren Adams FDOT, District 2 lauren.adams@dot.state.fl.us; FDOT Alternate

Ms. Christina Gillis Department of Children and Families christina.gillis@myflfamilies.com; DCF Voting Member

Mr. John Wisker Department of Children and Families john.wisker@myflfamilies.com; DCF Alternate

Ms. Sharon Spell Putnam County School District sspell@my.putnamschools.org; Public Education Voting Member Feb-26

Ms. Rochelle Price Vocational Rehabilitation rochelle.price@vr.fldoe.org; Dept. of Education Voting Member

Mr. Allen Buquo Putnam County Veterans Services allen.buquo@putnam-fl.gov; Veterans Voting Member

VACANT Community Action (Econ. Disadvantaged) VACANT

VACANT Elderly VACANT

VACANT Persons w/Disabilities VACANT

Ms. Darlene Laibl-Crowe Idhlc32177@icloud.com; Citizen Advocate/User Voting Member

Mr. Christopher Glymph Hanley Center Foundation cbglymph@yahoo.com; Citizen Advocate/Non-User Voting Member Feb-26 Feb-26 Vice Chair

VACANT Children at Risk VACANT

VACANT Elder Affairs VACANT

VACANT Private for Profit Transportation VACANT

Ms. Pamela Hagley Agency for Health Care Administration Pamela.hagley@ahca.myflorida.com; Agency for Health Care Admin. Voting Member

Ms. Reeda Harris Agency for Health Care Administration Reeda.harris@ahca.myflorida.com; Agency for Health Care Admin. Alternate

Ms. Sheryl Stanford Agency for Persons with Disabilities Sheryl.Dick-Stanford@apdcares.org; Agency for Persons with Disabilities Voting Member Feb-26

Ms. Diana Burgos-Garcia Agency for Persons with Disabilities diana.garcia@Apdcares.Org; Agency for Persons with Disabilities Alternate

Mr. Marc Albert CareerSource NEFL Career Center malbert@careersourcenefl.com; Workforce Development Voting Member Feb-26 Feb-26

Ms. Nanc: Russo SMA Healthcare nrusso@smahealthcare.org; Medical Community Voting Member Feb-26

Mr. Ride Solution, Inc. boyd@theridesolution.org; Local Mass/Public Transit Non-Voting Member CTC Director

Ms. Ride Solution, Inc. mbeltran@theridesolution.org; Local Mass/Public Transit Non-Voting Member Director of Operations

Ms. Karin Flositz Community Partnership for Children Karin.Flositz@cbcvf.org; Interested Party Send November mtg invite to her

Ms. Laura ‘Berardi ‘Putnam Co Board of County Commissioners laura.berardi@putnam-fl.gov; Executive Assistant to County Commissioners |Interested Party reserves BOCC room


mailto:leota.wilkinson@putnam-fl.gov;
mailto:Geanelly.Reveron@dot.state.fl.us;
mailto:janell.damato@dot.state.fl.us;
mailto:heather.fish@dot.state.fl.us;
mailto:christina.nalsen@dot.state.fl.us;
mailto:lauren.adams@dot.state.fl.us;
mailto:john.wisker@myflfamilies.com;
mailto:sspell@my.putnamschools.org;
mailto:rochelle.price@vr.fldoe.org;
mailto:allen.buquo@putnam-fl.gov;
mailto:ldhlc32177@icloud.com;
mailto:cbglymph@yahoo.com;
mailto:cbglymph@yahoo.com;
mailto:Pamela.hagley@ahca.myflorida.com;
mailto:Reeda.harris@ahca.myflorida.com;
mailto:Sheryl.Dick-Stanford@apdcares.org;
mailto:diana.garcia@Apdcares.Org;
mailto:malbert@careersourcenefl.com;
mailto:nrusso@smahealthcare.org;
mailto:boyd@theridesolution.org;
mailto:mbeltran@theridesolution.org;
mailto:Karin.Flositz@cbcvf.org;
mailto:laura.berardi@putnam-fl.gov

2021 - 2026
Putnam County
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

Approved by the

Putnam County
Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board

2509 Crill Avenue, Suite 200,
Palatka, Florida 32177

Chair, Hon. Leota Wilkinson

With Assistance From

Northeast Florida Regional Council
40 E Adams St. Ste. 40,
Jacksonville, FL 32202

www.nefrc.org
(904) 279-0880

September 2025


http://www.nefrc.org/

1|Page

SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN ....coiiininninnnensenssaesssnesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssseces 4

INTRODUCTION OF SERVICE PLAN ...ttt sttt sttt st ettt s h et b et este e sbeetesaenbesaeeneens 4
Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program .............ccccevveriiiniienienenieeieeeeieee e 4
Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date/HISOTY ........cccceeierierierenieierieeiieieeesee et 4
OrganizationNal CRATT .......ccoiuiiiiie ettt ettt et b et ea et e e bt e et et e s bt e st et e eb e bt en e e bt eaeent et e ebeebeabeenees 5
Consistency Review With Other PLANS ..........cocuiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt sb e 5
PUDBIIC PATtICIPALION ...ttt ettt b e et e e bt e st e st e st et e e bt et e st e ebeest e besb et e ente bt eneebesneenee 6

SERVICE AREA PROFILE/DEMOGRAPHICS ..ottt ettt ettt est ettt enteaesseeneeseensenseeseensenes 7
LLANA USE .ttt ettt et ettt et e bt e bt e s bt e bt e e bt e eh e e bt e bt e bt e be e a bt ea bt e bt e bt enbe e bt e bt enbe e be e bt enteeateea 7
POPUlAtioN/COMPOSILION ....ccvviiiiiiieiiiteeitee st et et e st esteebeebe e teesteesseesseesssasseesssesssassessseesseesseesssesssesseesssansessseessessesssessns 8

......................................................................................... 8
Number of Homeless Students PK-12 in PUtnam COUNLY.........c..cccueiiiiieiiiiieiieiriite e e st sreesteessesveesvsesenesseens 18
L2501 0] (07 318153 1 L USRS 18
Major Trip GENETALOTS/ AITACLOTS ...ee.vierveeriieiteeieestieteesteeiteeteeseesseesseeseessaasseasseessesseesseesssesssesssesssesssesssenseesssesssesseensens 21

Inventory of Available TranSportation SETVICES .......c..ccceercieeiiieeriieieeesieeeteesreeesteestreesseesseeesseeessseessseesssesssseessseenes 21
SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS ..otrtrriiiiiinscnnnnrecccsssssnnsessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 22
Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged POPUIAtION .........cc.cccviiieiiiiiiiiieiiccieceeie ettt e svee e sveeseresreeane e 22
INCEAS ASSESSIMIEIIL «.....eeueeuientieiteteettetetesteettebe b e ett et e st et e e bt e st et e eu e et e te s bt esteseen bt eheemtenteneeebeemtenbeeaee st entesbeemeemeenbesaeeneeneenes 22
Barriers t0 COOTAINMATION ....iouuiitiiitieiieteet ettt ettt e b ettt et e e bt e bt e bt e st e s bt e shtesateeabeabeesmteeateabeesatesnsenbeensean 24
Goal 1: Coordination of transportation disadvantaged SETVICES .........cccuervurrrierrerrerieeriesieseerseesseesseeseesseesseessnesseens 25 Goal
2: Focus on consumer choice and effiCIENCY. .....cccuiicuiiiiiiiiiiieic et e e e e e 25

Goal 3: Accountability: Utilize the Transportation Disadvantaged trust fund non- sponsored grant monies

3 T0A 3111 /TP 26 Goal
4: Utilize the expertise of the Local Coordinating Board. ...........cccoecueeiiiiiiieiiie et 26
Goal 5: CuStOMEr SAtISTACTION. ..c..eruitieiiiieiiee ettt ettt b et et e s bt et e st es e e st e sbeentesbe et enaentesseeneens 26
Goal 6: Maintain and plan for a safe and adequate fleet. ..........c.eovviiiiiiiiiice e e 27
Goal 7: SupPOTt TEZIONAL LTANSIL. ..ecvviiireiieriiereetieitee et et esesttesteestaessseessessaessseassessseasseassesseesseessaesssesssessesnssesssenses 27
SECTION 3: SERVICE PLAN ..uuuuiiiiiiiiinnnniiinsnnnnicsssnsscsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 28

OPERATIONS ...ttt ettt ettt e e bt e bt et e e bt e bt e et e et e et e e st et e sh e bt e bt em s e bt e et et eateebeemtesbesbeemtenbesbenbesneenes 28
LCB Prioritization Policy for Non-Sponsored Trips by Trip PUIPOSE .....c.cccvveriieriieiieiiieieeieerieeie e eieeseeeee e 28
Types, HOurs and Days Of SEIVICE .....ccccuiiiiiiiiiieciiieie ettt ete et este e s veeetaestaeeseseeetseessbeassseesssaessseesssseessassssennn 28
ALCCESSINIZ SETVICES ...vveuvrereeireatiesieeteeseesseesseasseesseesseessesssessseasseasseessessseessessssasseessesssessesssssssssassesssessseensesssesssesssessensanns 29
Transportation Operators and Coordination CONIIACTOTS ...........ecieeiiieiiieerieeiteeiteesreeesteeesreeesseesseeessaessseessseessesennes 30
PUbBIic TranSit ULTHZATION ......ccueiieriiiiieieeieteet ettt sttt ettt ettt et s bt be s bt et et e e bt et e e sbeeme e benbeeneeneensensenne 30
SChOOI BUS UTIHZATION ...ttt ettt et et a e bt ettt et et e e bt et e sb e e st et e bt eseenteneeeneeatenaenaenees 30



VEIICIE INVEINLOTY ..eeuviiitiiiieiiieii ettt ettt ettt e e bt e st e e taeetbeesbeesbeabeesseesseasseesbesabeessasssessseeasessbaessessseessesssesssesnseensesenns 30

System Safety Program Plan CertifiCation ............ceecuiiieriiiiiiiiiieiesie et see et ete st e e st e eseesteseaessneestessseenseessesseennns 30
INEETCOUNLY SEIVICES ..euvviiiiiiiiiiieeiieerte ettt e ettt ettt esteeeteesebeeesbeeesseassaeessaeasseesssseassseassesassaeansseeassaesseeasseeassaeassseesssenssennn 30
Natural Disaster/Emergency Preparedness .........ccovieiierierienieiiisee ettt sieete et ssaesseesseessaesseesseeseesssessesssenns 31
Educational EffOrts/MAarketing .........cco.eeiieiieiiiiieieee ettt ettt et sb e s bt ste et e bt e bt e bt e ste e beesbeesbeebeenbeesseeneeeas 31
ACCEPLADIE ATLEIMALIVES ...veevieiieriieeereriesitesterteesteestesteesseesseesseesseesseesseesssassaesseesssessessseasseesseesssesseesseessessseensessseensensses 31
SEIVICE STANAATAS ... eeeiieieietieie ettt et e et et e e s bt e ehteebeesb e e sb e e ebeea b e eabe e bt e ab e et e enbeesbeesbeebeenbeeseeeatenns 31
Local Complaint and Grievance ProcedUIe/PIOCESS .........ccevverierieriierieiierieesiee st eere e eseeseestessseesseesseesseesseessesseensns 35

SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE ...uuuiiiinriieniensnnnnsnensnssssnsssnesssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasses
39

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Local Coordinating Board Membership Certification .............ccocceveriiriininieninnieeseeeetee e 31
Appendix 2: ROIl Call VOtNG SHEEL .....cc.coiiiiiiiiiiitiieee ettt ettt ettt et s et bt et et et e besaeenee 33
Appendix 3: Organizational CRATT ...........coeiiiiiiiiieiieeecee ettt ettt e e et e e s teeb e e e taeesbeeasseessseeessaessseeessseeseessseenssens 34
APPENdixX 4: VEhICIE INVENTOTY ....vviiiiiiiiiiiiieeiie et eete ettt e ettt et e e taeesteeetbeessbeestaeessseeasseesssaeassseessssansseeasseesssensssesasseenns 35
ApPPEndiX 5: SSPP CertifICATION ...c..eruirtiiiiiiitieiietiet ettt sttt et bttt e e b e et ete e bt et et e sbeestest e besbeemeeneentebesaeenee 36
ApPPendiX 6: CUTR MOGEL .....oeeiiiiiiieieiee ettt ettt sttt s h e et e b bt e st et e e bt e st et e steemeenbe st entesbeeneesens 37
ApPendiX 7: CTC EVAIUALION ....eoouiitiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt ettt et sttt sttt e st e sh e em e et e e bt e st e tenbeeneente st emsesbeentensens 43
Appendix 8: Policies and Procedures ManUal .............ccceioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic ettt tee e eiveetbe e s veesiae e e be s ebeessseeenneeenens 67
Appendix 9: Disaster Preparedness PLan............coooii oottt 86

1"



3|Page
SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN
INTRODUCTION OF SERVICE PLAN

Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program

The overall mission of Florida’s Transportation Disadvantaged program is to ensure the availability of efficient, cost-
effective, and quality transportation services for transportation disadvantaged persons. People served by the program include
those who because of physical or mental disability, income status, or age are unable to transport themselves or to purchase
transportation and are, therefore, dependent upon others to obtain access to health care, employment, education, shopping,
social activities, or other life-sustaining activities, or children who are handicapped or high-risk or at-risk as defined in
Section 411.202, Florida Statutes.

Florida’s transportation disadvantaged program is governed by Part 1 of Chapter 427, Florida Statutes (F.S.), and Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule 41-2, and is implemented at the county or multi-county level by the following major
participants:

*  Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD)
* Local Coordinating Board (LCB)

* Designated Official Planning Agency (DOPA)

*  Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC)

*  Purchasers of Transportation Services

* Transportation Operators

Part I of Chapter 427 was enacted in 1979 and has subsequently been amended and re-enacted. Amendments made in 1989
resulted in the creation of the Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Commission, establishment of the Transportation
Disadvantaged Trust Fund, and enhancement of local participation in the planning and delivery of coordinated transportation
services to the transportation disadvantaged through the creation of LCBs and CTCs. Amendments made since 1989 have,
among other things, changed the name of the Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Commission to the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD), added members to the CTD, modified the definition of “transportation
disadvantaged,” and supplemented or modified the responsibilities of the CTD, the LCBs, the DOPAs, and the CTCs.

Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date/History

In April of 1984, the Putnam County Board of County Commissioners adopted a Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan
for Putnam County, recommending the Putnam County Association of Retarded Citizens (ARC) to serve as the Coordinated
Community Transportation Provider. The ARC formed a separate non-profit corporation known as ARC Transit, Inc. to
coordinate county-wide transportation. Beginning in 1985, the ARC Transit began to coordinate all county resources and
execute Purchase of Service Agreements with other agencies that sponsor transportation for their respective eligible clients.

Since that time, ARC Transit, Inc. became known as Ride Solutions and has been the service provider. In 2015, a request for
qualifications for Community Transportation Coordination was issued by the Northeast Florida Regional

12



Council as the DOPA. Ride Solutions responded and was ultimately designated as the service provider for another five
years, beginning in 2016.

Organizational Chart

Florida Commission for the

/ Coordinated Transportation
Transportation SyStem OI‘ ganization

Disadvantaged

Commission for the
Designates Transportation
Disadvantaged

Contracts With

4

Designated Official | Appoints .
Planning Agency | and Staffs->| Local Coord||nat|ng Board

owd I— Oversees
contract Recommends to CTD—— )
with
Purchasing - . Community .
Agencies Buys Trips Transportation
RS Coordinator
May bill directly Contrafts With Bills
1 Transportation Operators May provide

direct services

Provides Transportation

Transportation
Disadvantaged Riders

Consistency Review with Other Plans

Local Government Comprehensive Plan

The 2021-2026 Putnam County Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan (TDSP) has been reviewed for consistency with
the Putnam County Comprehensive Plan, as adopted by the Putnam County Board of County Commissioners. The
Transportation Disadvantaged program in Putnam County is addressed in the required Traffic Circulation Element of the
Putnam County Comprehensive Plan and the TDSP is consistent with policies B.1.6.5 and B.1.6.6.

Strategic Regional Policy Plan

This TDSP is consistent, to the maximum amount feasible, with “Strategic Directions: The Northeast Florida Strategic
Regional Policy Plan”, which was adopted by the NEFRC by Rule on January 16, 2014. The 2014 SRPP was based on a
regional visioning process and included extensive public input. The transportation disadvantaged system in the region is
addressed by Policies 2, 3, and 16 of the Regional Transportation Element.

Mobility Planning

Putnam County is not located within an MPO. However, Putnam County has been a long time participant in the Northeast
Florida Mobility Coalition. The Northeast Florida Coordinated Mobility Plan is the guide to enhanced transportation access
through improved coordination of transportation information, services and resources in

13



Northeast Florida. The Plan was developed by members of the general public, transportation providers, social service
agencies, and elected officials who identified gaps and redundancies in transportation services and have initiated
coordination methods to provide cost effective and efficient services in the Northeast Florida region. It was superseded by
the Regional Transit Action Plan.

Regional Transit Action Plan

Ride Solutions was represented in the creation of the Regional Transportation Commission’s Regional Transit Action Plan
2016 and the direction of that plan aligns with this TDSP. Ride Solutions is represented on the Regional Transit Working
Group, which is working on implementation of the plan. The Regional Transportation Commission has sunsetted.

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged Syr/20yr Plan
The TDSP is consistent with the themes of the Commission’s 2005 plan, although much of the plan is outdated.

Public Participation

Representatives of public, private and non-profit transportation and human services providers and members of the public
participate in the development of the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. Many of the Local Coordinating Board
members are staff to these agencies, and review the Service Plan at least annually. They are all invited to participate with
the development and update of the TDSP.

a. Transportation — Staff for the Northeast Florida Regional Council actively participates with the development of the
TDSP and coordinates the efforts to ensure that the policies in the plan are followed fully.

b. Passengers and Advocates — The CTC has close contact with its riders, and get input on a continuing basis.

c. Human Service Partners — The CTC staff has a close relationship with many local churches, health care facilities,
independent living centers, and job training and placement agencies, and receive input on a continuing basis.

Others - A public hearing is held annually in conjunction with a quarterly board meeting for public input.

SERVICE AREA PROFILE/DEMOGRAPHICS
Land Use

14



Pulnam Counly Fulure Lanc Use

1
e

i, sy 2
———————— A
-
s
{_,a_t_r_r—' }“a’l
s y
o 1 o 1 L3 £ u
- 3 W.J[L.E
Cradits PCPOS, PCGIS, FGOL, SIRWMD A':/_ -
&
“Tlis et s ot ruiersie oriby Dala skl are durived fon s svures with vardng levbs of scoonay, @ il
Futnam Coumty and its smployees dischim all respensiFility far the arcurary or -amp eteness of the data shawn hereon * 7i10/2017 2:55 PM

Source:

Putnam County, 2017

15



Population/Composition

Putnam County BEBR Population Estimates and Projections

Estimate Projections
April 1,
2024
76,138 April 1, April
2025 1,
2030
Low 74,500 73,100
Medium 76,400 77,600
High 78,300 82,000

Estimates of Population by County and City

Putnam County
Crescent City
Palatka
Interlachen
Pomona Park
Welaka

Unincorporated

April 1,
2035

71,000
78,100
85,300

April 1, 2024

76,138
1,702
10,503
1,495
801
815

60,822

April 1,2040 April

68,900
78,600
88,300

April 1, 2020

73,321
1,654
10,446
1,441
784
714

58,282

SOURCE: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Year

2025
2030
2035
2040
2045
2050

SOURCE: Veterans Administration Website: https://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran_Population.asp

16

5,814
5,049
4,392
3,904
3,545
3,251

April
1, 1,
2045 2050
66,900 65,100
79,000 79,400
91,100 93,700
Total Change 2020-
2024
2,817
48
57
54
17
101
2,540


http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population
http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population
http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population
http://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran_Population.asp
http://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran_Population.asp
http://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran_Population.asp

Putnam County Population - 5-year Estimates and Projections

Putnam County Population - 5-year Estimates and Projections

Census Estimate  Projections
Age 2023 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
0-4 4,454 4,510 4,464 4,423 4,325 4,352 4,396
5-9 4,428 4,468 4,620 4,553 4,517 4,434 4,459
10-14 4,526 4,426 4,538 4,672 4,609 4,585 4,497
15-19 4,332 4,442 4,198 4,288 4,423 4,380 4,357
20-24 3,799 3,776 4,043 3,785 3,873 4,014 3,974
25-29 3,867 3,708 3,666 3,906 3,658 3,758 3,891
30-34 4,082 4,221 3,812 3,754 4,001 3,762 3,867

35-39 4,055 4,021 4,412 3,967 3,908 4,178 3,938
40-44 4,187 4,323 4,243 4,637 4,174 4,118 4,396

45-49 4,196 4,219 4,599 4,502 4,929 4,446 4,382
50-54 4,459 4,429 4,491 4,891 4,798 5,267 4,744
55-59 5,177 4,781 4,713 4,769 5,206 5,125 5,622
60-64 6,018 5,985 4,970 4,897 4,956 5,430 5,347
65-69 5,727 5,962 5,916 4,922 4,858 4,926 5,401
70-74 4,631 4,753 5,315 5,293 4,421 4,375 4,434
75-79 3,560 3,775 4,096 4,630 4,666 3,936 3,916
80-84 2,222 2,362 2,804 3,081 3,525 3,594 3,049
85+ 2,186 2,282 2,660 3,170 3,676 4,285 4,729

Total 75,906 76,443 77,560 78,140 78,523 78,965 79,399

SOURCE: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, Florida Population Studies, Bulletin 178 http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Statistics Related to County Population Age 60+
Number of Homeless Students PK-12 in Putnam County

17


http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population
http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Total Homeless Living Situation: Shelters Shared Other Motels
Students 2022-2023 housing
Survey

434 56 308 48 22

Source: Florida Department of Education's website:

https://www.fldoe.org/policy/federal-edu-programs/title-ix-mvp/data-reports.stml

The Percentage of Population Below the Poverty Line by Age in Putnam
County, 2023

Age Total Total Total Below the Total Below the Percent Percent Below
Estimates Margin of Poverty Line  Poverty Below Poverty Line
Error Estimates Line Margin Poverty Margin of
of Errors Line Error

Under 18 years 15,641 +/-147 5,276 +/-842 33.7% +/-5.4

Under 5 years 4,091 +/-62 1,368 +/-296 33.4% +/-7.2

5-17 Years Old 11,550 +/-152 3,908 +/-723 33.8% +/-6.2
+/- +/- 9 +/-

Related Children of 15,553 /-164 5,188 /-835 33.4% /-5.4

Householder Under

18 Years

18 to 64 years 40,269 +/-72 9,875 +/-885 24.5% +/-2.2

18 to 34 years 13,276 +/-190 3,634 +/-510 27.4% +/-3.9

35-64 years 26,993 +/-200 6,241 +/-711 23.1% +/-2.7

60 years and over 23,483 +/-484 3,870 +/-482 16.5% +/-1.9

65 years and over 17,015 +/-74 2,258 +/-323 13.3% +/-1.9

Note: The poverty line is based on the U.S. Census’s Poverty Threshold which is the minimum annual income determined by the age, household type, and the
number of children in a household for each family unit. The number of family units below that minimum annual income for each group are considered living below
the poverty line. The minimum breakdown for each group is found at https://www.census.gov/data/tables/time- series/demo/income-poverty/historical-
povertythresholds.html

Source: The American Community Survey 2023-Five Year Estimates

https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.S1701?q=S1701&g=050XX00US12107&vintage=2018&layer=VT 2018 050 00 _PY DI

18


https://www.fldoe.org/policy/federal-edu-programs/title-ix-mvp/data-reports.stml
http://www.census.gov/data/tables/time-
https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.S1701?q=S1701&g=050XX00US12107&vintage=2018&layer=VT_2018_050_00_PY_D1

Employment

Subject Putnam
Total Labor Force Participation Rate
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone 340 +/-71 63.8% +/-20.6
Some other race alone 8 +/-14 100% +/-100
Two or more races 428 +/-189 74.3% +/-16.4
755 +/-202 46.4% +/-16.3
Hispanic or Latino origin (of any race)
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino 4,742 +/-88 58% +/-5
44,029 +/-174 46.2% +/-1.4
Population 20 to 64 years
SEX 39,528 +/-195 64.1% +/-1.7
Male
Female 19,560 +/-86 67.7% +/-2.6
With own children under 18 years 19,968 +/-165 60.5% +/-2.4
With own children under 6 years only 5,369 +/-433 67.9% +/-5.5
With own children under 6 years and 6 to 17 years 1,242 +/-298 53.3% +/-12.7
old
With own children to 6 to 17 years 1,137 +/-251 62.4% +/-10.7
2,990 +/-335 76% +/-6.1
POVERTY STATUS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS
Below poverty level
At or above the poverty level 9,508 +/-913 44.5% +/-4.4
29,223 +/-863 72.2% +/-1.6
DISABILITY STATUS
With any disability
6,276 +/-603 7.6% +/-4.9
EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT
Population 25 to 64 years
Less than high school graduate 35,570 +/-167 64.1% +/-1.9

19




High school graduate (includes equivalency) 6,671 +/-630 51.9% +/-4.7
Some college or associate degree 14,471 +/-674 65% +/-3.2
Bachelor's degree or higher 10,550 +/-790 66.8% +/-3.5
3,878 +/-479 74.3% +/-4.3

20




Employment Fopylatipn. Ratio Unemployment rate
Dppulation 16 vears and over 42 5% H-1.3 10.5% =17
AGE
16 ta 10 years 18.3% 53 28.6% +-12.4
70 to 24 years 52.8% ~L6.0 17.4% +T.4
15 to 29 years 673% T 9.5% -2
30 to 34 years 63 6% 6.2 11.6% +-4.8
35 to 44 years 64.4% =51 e +-3.7
45 1o 54 years |61 00 +-3.8 10.58% +37
53 to 59 years 36.1% 54 70 2.5
60 to 64 years 32.5% 3.6 |6.9%% +ed.1
45 ta T4 years 15.2% +-2.7 3.4% 3.7
75 yaars and aver 4.1% L 445 +-78
FACE AND HISFAMIC OF LATINO ORICIN
White alane 42 8% +-1.5 EE% +-1.6
Bilack ar African American alane 309 ~45 18.5% +-
American Indian and Alsska Mative alone 23.1% 2 7% 423
Aszian alane 58.1% 23 T4 +-12.4
Mative Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone 100%% 100 0% +-100
Some other race slone T0.8% +L14.2 4,75 +-7.1
Two or mare Tacss 42 5% +14.0 3% +-12.2
Hispanic or Lating origin {of 2oy race) 53.6% Y T5% +-d 8
White alane, not Hispanic or Lating 41 094 <16 9.2% o
Popalation 20 to 64 vears 57.4% 1.9 10.4% +-1.8
EEX
Male 60.5% +L1.8 005 +-2.7
Female 53.0% +13 10.8% +-14
With gwn children imder 18 vears 2060 50 12.2% AT
With onm children imder & vears only 44 T4 =13 16.2% =124
With owm children umder 6 years and 6 to 17 years 20.0% +11.2 18.5% Hi-124
With own children under 6 to 17 years anly 68.1% 6.3 0.1 5.7
POVERTY STATUS [N THE PAST 12 MOWNTHS
Below poverty level 28.1% 3.6 36.6% +-6.3
At or ghove the povarty Leval G68_5% =19 | 5%, 1.4
DIEAEILITY STATUS
With amy dizability 10.3% +.33 6. T% 101
EDICATIONAL ATTAINMENT
Popmlation 23 to G4 years 7004 -2 DA% +-1.8
Laszz than high school graduate 45.0% +35 11.5% AT
High school graduate {mchides equivalency) 37.7% +-33 11.1% +-34
Some collese or associats degres 60.9% R £.3% 1.0
Eachelar's degree or higher 713% s [4.1% +-25

Source: The American Community Survey 2023-Five Year Estimates

https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.52301?q=S2301&g=050XX00US12107&vintage=2018&layer=VT 2018 050 00 _PY DI

21


https://data.census.gov/table/ACSST5Y2023.S2301?q=S2301&g=050XX00US12107&vintage=2018&layer=VT_2018_050_00_PY_D1

Overview of Land Use, Population/Composition and Employment

The future land use map and demographics, when considered together indicate that Putnam is a rural County with slow
population and job growth, when compared to other Counties in Northeast Florida. The population is aging. The ALICE
(Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed) report, done in 2018 by the United Way of Florida, analyzed households
that earn more than the U.S poverty level but less than the basic cost of living for the County. In the case of Putnam County,
the median household income at $ 41,608 is significantly lower than the statewide average of $ 55,462. The

ALICE report identifies the household survival budget for a single adult as $ 22,584 and for a family with two working
parents, an infant and a Pre-K child as $ 59,676. The transportation potion of the family survival budget exceeds food and
housing and is the second largest expense after childcare for a family of two adults with two children in childcare. The
number of households below the poverty level (22%) combined with the number of ALICE households, who earn less than
the household survival budget (36%), make up 58% of Putnam County’s total households. These households are among
those in need of transit, so they can save money and build wealth.

Major Trip Generators/Attractors

In addition to trip generated by the needs of individual rural residents, trips are generated by nursing homes and long term
care facilities, and public or multi-family housing. Social service facilities, doctor’s offices and shopping areas are attractors
for trips, as are the downtowns of the County seat of Palatka, and the smaller towns such as Satsuma, Crescent City, Pomona
Park and Interlachen. St. Johns River Community College, the VA hospital in Gainesville, Green Cove Springs, Orange Park
and the City of Jacksonville are all attractors outside of the county, for those seeking education, health care and/or jobs.

Inventory of Available Transportation Services

Other than transportation network companies that may provide rides to or from Putnam County and Ride Solutions as the
Community Transportation Coordinator for Putnam County, the following companies provide transportation:

*  Beep Beep Taxi
* Coastal Cab

*  Courtesy Transport

SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS

Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population

Based on the Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR) 2013 Methodology Guidelines for Forecasting TD
Transportation Demand, the general TD population estimate for 2018 is 35,757 or 49.1% of the total population. The forecast
for 2020 considers that of the TD population, 3,975 persons are considered to be of critical need. This is comprised of 2,837
persons who are considered to have severe disabilities and 1,138 persons of low income without access to an automobile or
transit. The critical need population could be expected to make 2,378 daily trips and 618,279 annual trips in 2020. The
forecast model is included as Appendix 6.

Needs Assessment

This section provides an overview of the programs that are qualified for funding under the Public Transportation, Elderly
Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities, Job Access and Reverse Commute Program (JARC), and New Freedom
programs in support of the Federal Safe Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users

22



(SAFETEA-LU). The CTC provides paratransit service inside the County and to outside destinations, supplemented by local
ambulance service to meet the demand for stretcher trips.

Section 5310 - Transit for the Elderly and Persons with Disabilities — This program provides formula funding to states
for the purpose of assisting private non-profit groups in meeting the transportation needs of the elderly and persons with
disabilities with the transportation service provided is unavailable, insufficient, or inappropriate to meeting these needs.

Section 5311 — Rural and Small Urban Areas — This program provides formula funding to states for the purpose of
supporting public transportation in areas for less than 50,000 people. Funds may be used of capital, operating, and
administrative assistance to state agencies, local public bodies, and nonprofits organizations and operators of public
transportation services.

5-Year Transportation Disadvantaged Transportation Improvement Program and
other Funding Requests and Results

*Same Need

Fiscal Year Section 5310 Section 5311 Section Funding Received
5339
16/17 Operational grant for Operating expenses = $827,900, $74,900 5310 Capital,
$223,313 and $73,861 for of $949,809. full cost of $256,071 5310 Operating

the Orange Park and Palatka $808,764 for replacement
route. $745,110 (plus a Greyhound routes. vehicle.*

match of $82,790) in capital

grant vehicle replacement *

17/18 Operational budget of Operational budget = One vehicle 5310 Operating $349,640
$256,072 and one vehicle at of $799,378, at $74,500.
$74,900. $808,764

Greyhound routes.

18/19 Operating $200,000, Capital Total $831,768, $187,368 5310 Total $180,000, Local
$90,119 Local $415,884. no match $90,000 Federal $90,000

ired.
AU 5311 Total $831,768, Local

$415,884.

5339 Total $187,368 No match
required.

23



19/20

20/21

21/22

22/23

23/24

Capital: Total $90,119,
Federal $72,095, State
$9,012 Local $9,012 Same
as applied. Operational:
Requested Total $400,00
Federal $200,000.

Capital: 2 replacement
cutaways $178,330
($142,664 Fed, $17,838
State, $17,838 local)

Operating: Continue existing
level of services for flex
routes in the City of
Palatka ($340,400 total)

$320,000 ($160,000 Fed,
$160,000 Local)
OPERATING funds to
continue flex route and
demand services in the City
of Palatka.
$2,136,843 Operating funds;
$2,978,800 Capital
(CRRSAA/ARP)

Ride Solution requesting
$1,455,549 ($727,774
Federal, $727,775 Local)
OPERATING funds to
increase frequency on
Palatka City Route and
expand service hrs on
existing in-county flex
routes

Requesting $406,871 in
federal CAPITAL funds for

$454,245 Federal
Local Share same,
total-$908,490
Requested Total
$1,000,000.00
Local $500,000
Federal $500,000

$907,276 Total

(Fed $453,638 ,
Local $453,638)

$2,136,843
Operating funds;
$2,978,800 Capital
(CRRSAA/ARP)

24

26’ vehicle
(10 amb, 2
w/c
positions)
$90,119
(100% Fed)

5310 Operating $180,000
(50%1 5310 Capital $90,119
($72,095 Fed, $9,012 State,
$9,012 local)ocal),

5310 Total Operating
$340,400 ($170,200 Fed,
$170,200 Local)

5310 Total Capital $178,330
($142,664 Fed, $17,833 State,
$17,833 local)

5311 Total $907,276
($453,638 Fed, $453,638
Local)

$1,334,948 (all federal)



three (3) REPLACEMENT
cutaways. Two (2) cutaways
with 10AMB and 3W/C
positions and one (1)
cutaway with 6 AMB and
6W/C positions.

Additional request for
$1,401,285 in federal
OPERATING funds to
increase frequency on
Palatka City Route and
expand service hours on
existing in-county flex
routes.

Barriers to Coordination

The following are identified barriers to the Coordination process:

*  Continued funding cuts for transportation services from the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged and other
purchasing agencies.

*  Agencies that do not pay the fully allocated operating cost for transportation services. This causes other agencies to pay
a higher cost for transportation services in effect subsidizing the agencies that do not pay the fully allocated operating
cost.

* Agencies that do not include a line-item budget for transportation services. These agencies then place a heavy reliance
on the TD Trust Funds for their transportation needs. Agencies that do not adequately fund client transportation cause
other agencies and funding sources to pay the additional cost of agency transportation services.

* Lack of a dedicated funding source for operating and capital expenses.

* Increasing cost of vehicles and insurance.

* Lack of, or limited, specialized medical care available within Putnam County itself, which results in numerous trips
being made outside of the service area for specialized care.

GOALS, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE

25



Goal 1:
OBJECTIVE 1.1:

Strategy 1.1.1:

Coordination of transportation disadvantaged services

Contract with agencies purchasing transportation services using public funds.

Utilize executed Purchase of Service Agreements (POS) as necessary with all agencies purchasing
transportation services with public funds prior to service being initiated. Such POS Agreements
shall specify the service and cost of each type of transportation service to be provided (fixed, direct,
indirect, per mile, etc.).

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will act as soon as it becomes aware of the need for a POS. Reporting will be as needed

Goal 2:
OBJECTIVE 2.1:

Strategy 2.1.1:

Strategy 2.1.2:

Strategy 2.1.3:
Strategy 2.1.4:

Strategy 2.1.5:

Strategy 2.1.6

or in the final quarter, when the TDSP is reviewed.

Focus on consumer choice and efficiency.

Arrange transportation services to maximize consumer choice and vehicle efficiency.

As funding permits, maintain operations of deviated fixed-route systems.

Using Trapeze, analyze current service delivery and demands for service to develop consumer travel
patterns.

Survey transportation system users for potential ridership levels and develop routes accordingly.
Increase number of clients/riders served.

Maximize the multi-loading of vehicles trips as practical to reduce cost per trip and maximize
efficiency.

As the State and County allow, and as the TD Commission develops a mechanism to authorize and
fund rides from transportation network companies or other providers, utilize the range of services
that make sense in Putnam County or regionally to maximize efficiency and choice.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will track data and report in the final quarter, when the TDSP is reviewed.

OBJECTIVE 2.2:
Strategy 2.2.1:

Strategy 2.2.2:

Market the system within Putnam County and regionally.

Promote service availability to agencies and consumers through advertising efforts, social media,
partnerships, the distribution of flyers to social service agencies and consumers, and to the general
public at County events.

Maintain an on-time performance of at least 90 percent, as this will help the system “sell itself” by
word of mouth.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will market on an ongoing basis. On-time performance will be reported with the annual

Goal 3:

evaluation done by the LCB.

Accountability: Utilize the Transportation Disadvantaged trust fund non-
sponsored grant monies efficiently.

26



OBJECTIVE 3.1: Adhere to strict budget of non-sponsored funding to prevent over-spending or under- spending of
non-sponsored trip monies at end of grant year cycle.

Strategy 3.1.1: Delineate budget utilizing non-sponsored monies with monthly allocation. Provide report to
Coordinating Board on status of these funds at each meeting.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will track the budget on an ongoing basis and report quarterly to the LCB.
Goal 4: Utilize the expertise of the Local Coordinating Board.
OBJECTIVE 4.1: Complete all reports in a timely fashion which require Coordinating Board approval and/or

review, including all reports requested by the Coordinating Board.

Strategy 4.1.1: Final draft preparation of reports will be completed prior to the Quarterly meeting and presented
to the Board for their review.

Strategy 4.1.2: Provide a written overview of ridership totals, vehicles miles, costs, and revenue at each quarter,
with a comparison to the same quarter of the previous year.

Strategy 4.1.3: Provide and present the Annual Operating Report to the LCB prior to its submittal to the
Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged on or before September 15.

Strategy 4.1.4: Present rate calculation for the LCB approval.

Strategy 4.1.5: Information on grants applied for will be provided to the LCB for their approval for incorporation
into this plan.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC and Planning Agency will provide timely reporting to the LCB and the
Commission on an ongoing basis.

Goal 5: Customer Satisfaction.

OBJECTIVE 5.1- The Local Coordinatipg Board shall monitor the quality of service provided by the Community
Transportation Coordinator.

Strategy 5.1.1: The Community Transportation Coordinator shall report complaints to the Local Coordinating
Board.
Strategy 5.1.2: The Community Transportation Coordinator will to respond to grievances as specified by the

bylaws of the Local Coordinating Board.
Strategy 5.1.3 The Community Transportation Coordinator will develop a system to serve non-English speaking customers
more effectively.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will provide timely reporting to the LCB on an ongoing basis.

Goal 6: Maintain and plan for a safe and adequate fleet.

27



OBJECTIVE 6.1:

Strategy 6.1.1:

Strategy 6.1.2:

Develop and maintain a transit capital acquisition/replacement plan with an emphasis on safety.

Identify vehicles due for replacement during the budget process at the start of each CTC fiscal year.

Utilize all available Federal, State, and local grant funding sources including but not limited to
FDOT Section 5310, 5311(f), and 5339, as well as FDOT Service Development program funds for
procurement of vehicles for either replacement or expansion purposes as necessary.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will provide timely reporting to the LCB on an ongoing basis.

Goal 7:
OBJECTIVE 7.3:

Strategy 7.3.1:

Strategy 7.3.2:

Support regional transit.

Increase coordination with other counties in Northeast Florida and surrounding communities.

Continue to participate in the Northeast Florida Regional Transportation Commission’s Northeast
Florida Regional Transit Coordinating Committee (RTCC) in implementing the Regional Transit
Action Plan.

Coordinate multi-county trips and service enhancement between Putnam County and other counties
by cooperating and working with nearby counties as well as the Community Transportation
Coordinators represented on the RTCC (Baker, Clay, Duval, Nassau, and St. Johns Counties).

Implementation Schedule: The CTC and Planning Agency will attend monthly meetings of the RTCC as needed.

Other efforts are ongoing.

Performance Measures

These measures will assist in determining if the goals, objectives and strategies are being met:

Performance Measure Target

Accidents per 100,000 Paratransit Miles Less than 1.2

Vehicle miles between Road Calls At least 10,000
(PT)
On-Time Performance At least 90%

SECTION 3: SERVICE PLAN
OPERATIONS

The operations element is a profile of the Putnam County Transportation Disadvantaged system. This element is intended
to provide basic information about the daily operations of Ride Solution Inc.

28



LCB Prioritization Policy for Non-Sponsored Trips by Trip Purpose

Coordinated Trips that are funded by the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund are managed by the Community
Transportation Coordinator (CTC) according to the Local Coordinating Board’s Prioritization Policy. The Policy ranks
certain trip purposes in a priority order. The funding is allocated according to a monthly spending plan. Trips are provided
based on trip efficiency, seating availability and available funding. There may be times when the Community Transportation
Coordinator cannot provide every trip requested. Passengers may be asked if they could take their trip on a different day,
when there may be more funding available. The CTC will track the purpose and date of all trip requests that are denied.

Priority Order Trip Purposes — Categories and Definitions

1. MEDICAL — medical, dental or therapeutic services including hospital appointments, clinic visits, dialysis, health
department, mental health centers, speech, occupational, physical therapies, psychiatric, psychological services,
pharmaceuticals, etc.

2. NUTRITIONAL — adult congregate meal programs, breakfast programs, food stamp procurement and food shopping
trips.

3. EMPLOYMENT — work or employment related education.

4, SOCIAL SERVICE AGENCY — agency related support services, churches, senior citizen programs (excluding

nutritional programs).

5. PERSONAL BUSINESS — non-agency activities essential to maintenance of independence including banking, non-
shopping, legal appointments, etc.

6. RECREATION — non-essential, non-employment related trips to activities such as: bowling, bingo, beach, parks,
restaurants, libraries, theaters, etc.

Types, Hours and Days of Service

The transportation disadvantaged services in Putnam County are provided in various methods, determined by the needs of
the transportation users and the frequency of use. Ride Solution, Inc. has developed fixed routes with deviation which serve
Palatka, Interlachen, Crescent City, St. Augustine (St. Johns County), Gainesville (Alachua County) and Orange Park (Clay
County). All trip requests are coded for pick up and drop off locations. Route corridor flow studies are then utilized to
determine the feasibility of fixed route with deviation service. Routes are then designed to include stops at all service centers
(Government offices, shopping malls, medical facilities, etc.). Route deviation time is then added to the route schedule so
that the bus can provide door-to-door service when needed. All vehicles used on the fixed route with deviation are
wheelchair-lift equipped with vehicles having between two

and seven wheelchair lock down positions. Pure demand/response service is used when routes are either not yet established
or are not financially feasible.

Accessing Services

Individuals wishing to utilize the Ride Solution, Inc. transportation services can access the system by calling the central
reservation number at (386) 325-9999 by 12:00 p.m. (noon) the previous work day. This notification is required in order to
group trips for individuals who are sponsored and non-sponsored to obtain the most cost- effective method of service
delivery. Transportation services are provided seven days a week, 24 hours per day. Trip Cancellation / No Show Policy

29



Ride Solution staff monitors trip cancellations and no shows daily. Passengers with a 20% trip cancellation and no show
percentage rate are counseled on their impact to the overall system and to their fellow passengers. Passengers with standing
orders who have a 30% or greater trip no show rate may have their standing orders cancelled. This will require the passenger
to call each day to schedule their trip. After-Hours Service

In order to access service on weekends, individuals need to reserve transportation by noon on Friday.
Ride Solution Non-sponsored Transportation Priorities

The following priorities further refine the LCB priorities. They will be observed in scheduling trips using non- sponsored
TD grant funds, unless the trip occurs entirely on a regularly scheduled route.

1. Life Threatening Medical

a) Kidney Dialysis

b) Cancer Treatment
2. Routine Medical

a) Doctor Appointments

b) Therapy

) Prescription & Medical Supplies
3. Life-Sustaining Activities

a) Nutrition/Food Stamps

b) Medical Re-Certification

4, Work - Transportation to and from work will be limited to thirty (30) days during a one year period and will be
accessible by the priority schedule.

5. Education
6. Personal Business (i.e.: banking, hair appointments, paying bills, etc.)
7. Recreational (restaurants, movies, bowling, etc.)

Requesting a trip will not insure transportation. Trips will be provided according to the priority schedule. Request must be
received by 12:00 noon the work day prior to the date of service. Same day service will be provided for medically necessary
trips only with the driver and vehicle availability when possible.

To insure funding for priority #3 or lower trips, contact the transportation office prior to 12:00 noon the day before the
requested trip.

Eligibility of Riders

Any resident of Putnam County may request an eligibility application from Ride Solution. An eligibility application must
be completely filled out to be considered for transportation service. If assistance is needed completing the application, Ride
Solution staff members are available to help. The completed application is reviewed by Ride Solution staff and a
determination of eligibility will be made based on the information provided. A staff interview or assessment may be required
to complete the process.

In addition to riders at general public bus stops, Ride Solution serves a limited group of people, including those sponsored
under the following limited to availability of funding:

30



* Transportation Disadvantaged (TD): Includes qualifying individuals in areas where fixed route service does not
operate and have no other means of transportation.

*  Medicaid: Ride Solution provides trips for Medicaid eligible services for those persons who cannot travel by fixed route
and have no other means of transportation.

* Agencies: Includes people whose trips are under a negotiated agency contract. Ride Solution staff will determine the

funding category appropriate for each customer.

Transportation Operators and Coordination Contractors

Ride Solution Inc. currently has purchase of service or rate agreements with the following agencies: ARC of Putnam
County, Inc., AHCA Medicaid, Putnam County Health Department, St. Johns River Water Management employees, and
Suwannee River Economic Opportunity Council (Community Care for Elderly, Older Americans Act).

The CTC will utilize a competitive RFP process when acquiring the services of private for profit operators. The execution
and implementation of the operator contracts will be the responsibility of and at the discretion of Ride Solution, Inc.

Public Transit Utilization

In addition to its county wide, general public flex route system, Ride Solution also operates seven day a week Greyhound
connector services to St. Augustine, Gainesville, and Jacksonville. Respectively, these Greyhound routes also connect with
Sunshine Bus, RTS, and JTA.

School Bus Utilization

Ride Solution Inc. does not maintain an agreement with the Putnam County School Board to utilize the school buses when
needed. There has been no need for this contract for several years.

Vehicle Inventory

A vehicle inventory for Ride Solution Inc. is included as Appendix 4.

System Safety Program Plan Certification

The System Safety Program Plan Certification for Ride Solution Inc. is included as Appendix 5.

Intercounty Services

Ride Solution serves Gainesville with through its contract with Greyhound on a seven day a week schedule. Ride Solution
has also, as needed, supplied transport for clients of St. Johns and Clay counties as requested by the neighboring CTCs. Ride
Solution also provides service to and from Palatka and Orange Park four times a day, five days per week.

Natural Disaster/Emergency Preparedness

The Disaster Preparedness Plan for Ride Solution Inc. has been included as Appendix 9.

31



Educational Efforts/Marketing

In the past Ride Solution Inc. has primarily used the word of mouth marketing approach in addition to working with the
sponsoring programs to obtain ridership for the system. Ride Solution is now working with many social service agencies to
share information about the services available and is participating in community events. Ride Solution is also revamping
their website and taking advantage of social media platforms.

Acceptable Alternatives

There have been no acceptable alternatives for the provision of transportation service identified in Putnam County.

Service Standards

Service standards are integral to the development and implementation of a quality transportation program and are intended
to bring about uniform service provision in the coordinated system. The Putnam County Local Coordinating Board (LCB)
will evaluate the CTC’s compliance of the established service standards annually. The LCB will also accept any other
agency’s review of the CTC (i.e.: FDOT, etc.) which encompasses any of the standards as part of the evaluation to determine
compliance for that standard.

COMMISSION SERVICE STANDARDS

Drug and Alcohol Testing
All safety sensitive job positions shall comply with the pre-employment, randomization, post-accident and reasonable
suspicion testing requirements of the Federal Transit Administration.

Transport of Escorts and Dependent Children

Children under the age of 12 and individuals requiring special loading assistance will be required to be accompanied by an
escort. The escorts must be an adult and able to provide the necessary assistance to the passenger, and will be transported at
the additional passenger rate (per company policy for escorts). Ride Solution will provide escorts if the sponsoring agency
will pay the salary.

Use, Responsibility and Cost of Child Restraint Devices
All passengers under the age of 5 and/or fewer than 45 pounds shall be required to use a child restraint device. This device
will be provided by the parent or sponsoring agency.

Passenger Property

Passengers will be allowed to have all personal property which they can place in their lap or stow under the seat. Passenger
property does not include wheelchairs, child seats, stretchers, secured oxygen, personal assistive devices, or intravenous
devices.

Vehicle Transfer Points

Vehicle transfer points shall be located in a safe and secure place that provides shelter.

Local Toll Free Telephone Number
A local toll free telephone number shall be posted in all vehicles within the transportation system. This telephone number
shall be included in the complaint process.

Out-of-Service Area Trips
The CTC will provide out-of-service area trips as necessary on weekdays for specified reasons.

32



Vehicle Cleanliness

Interior of all vehicles shall be free of dirt, grime, oil, trash, torn upholstery, damaged or broken seats, protruding metal or
other objects or materials which could soil items placed in the vehicle or provide discomfort for the passenger. All vehicles
shall be cleaned (interior and exterior) on a regular schedule.

Billing Requirements
The CTC shall pay all bills within 15 days to subcontractors after receipt of said payment by the CTC.

Passenger/Trip Database
The CTC shall collect the name, telephone number, address, funding source eligibility and special requirements on each
prescheduled passenger in a database.

Adequate Seating
Vehicle seating shall not exceed the manufacturer’s recommended capacity.

Driver Identification

Drivers shall be required to announce and identify themselves by name and company in a manner that is conducive to
communications with the specific passenger upon pickup except in situations where the driver regularly transports the rider
on arecurring basis. All drivers shall have a picture identification and/or name badge displayed at all times when transporting
passengers.

Passenger Assistance

All drivers shall provide the passenger with boarding assistance, if necessary or requested, to the seating portion of the
vehicle. The boarding assistance shall include opening the vehicle door, fastening the seat belt or utilization of wheelchair
securement devices, storage of mobility assistive devices, and closing the vehicle door.

Other assistance may be provided except in situations in which providing assistance would not be safe for passengers remaining
on the vehicle.

Assisted access must be in a dignified manner. Drivers may not assist wheelchair up or down more than one step. Smoking
There will be no smoking on any vehicles in the coordinated system.

Eating & Drinking on Vehicles
Eating and drinking on board vehicles in the coordinated system is prohibited.

Passenger No-Shows

Passenger no-shows are defined as trips not canceled prior to the dispatch of the vehicle. Ride Solution staff monitors trip
cancellations and no shows daily. Passengers with a 20% trip cancellation and no show percentage rate are counseled on
their impact to the overall system and to their fellow passengers. Passengers with standing orders who have a 30% or greater
trip no show rate may have their standing orders cancelled. This will require the passenger to call each day to schedule their
trip.

Two-Way Communications

All vehicles will be equipped with 2-way radios. Cell phones will be provided for long-distance trips.

Air Conditioning/Heating of Vehicles
All vehicles in the coordinated system shall have working air conditioning and heating. Vehicles that do not have a working
air conditioner and heater will be scheduled for repair or replacement as soon as possible.

Should a vehicle incur a problem, it will be repaired as soon as possible. The owner/operator is responsible for its repair.
The priority of the LCB is that the CTC provide transportation. If a vehicle’s air conditioning or heating is not functioning

33



properly, and, if there are no other vehicles available, the passengers will be transported, rather than removing the vehicle
from service.

Passengers with health conditions which are affected by A/C, or lack of it, will be notified if their vehicle’s A/C is not
working, and the passenger will be given the opportunity to decide whether to take the trip.

LOCAL STANDARDS

CPR / First Aid
All drivers will be certified in First Aid annually. All drivers will be certified in Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) every
two years.

Driver Background Screening
All drivers in the coordinated system must have a favorable FDLE background screening as approved by the Department of
Children and Families.

Service Effectiveness The

CTC shall:

1. Increase the number of passenger trips per vehicle miles annually.
2. Maintain the cost per passenger trip annually.

3. Maintain the cost per vehicle mile annually.

Contract Monitoring
The CTC will perform on-going monitoring and an annual evaluation of the contracted operator according to the Local
Coordinating Board’s evaluation process, using applicable portions of the evaluation materials.

Pick-up Window
There is a 30-minute pick-up window in place for all trips within the coordinated system.

For trips that are prescheduled:

There is a 30-minute window on appointment time and return pick up time. (15/15 on either
side)

For will-call trips:

There is a 60-minute pickup window. The passenger should expect the vehicle to pick them up within 30 minutes
after the customer contacts the CTC.

On-Time Performance
The CTC shall have a 90% on-time performance rate for all completed trips.

Advance Reservation Requirement
There will be a 24-hour notice requirement for all trips scheduled within the coordinated system.

Accidents
During each evaluation period, there shall be a target standard of not more than 1.2 accidents per 100,000 miles traveled
within the coordinated system.

34



Road Calls
There shall be no less than 10,000 miles between each road call.

Call-hold Time
All calls shall be answered as soon as possible.

Passenger Behavior
Ride Solution deals with a variety of agencies, some of which have policies regarding disciplinary problems. When an
agency has an existing policy regarding behavioral problems, Ride Solution will abide by the agencies’ existing policy.

If no policy exists, Ride Solution will deal with behavioral problems as follows:

1. First incident, a verbal warning to advise the responsible agency that an incident has occurred.
2. Second incident shall be reported to the sponsoring agency for possible corrective action.
3. Third incident, Ride Solution will meet with all concerned parties and decide if transportation privileges

are to be suspended.

ADA Policies

Life Support Systems

Portable medical oxygen is allowed on board all vehicles provided that the passenger is not oxygen dependent and is capable
of administering the oxygen themselves. At no time will Ride Solution employees be involved in the administration of
oxygen. Passengers who are oxygen dependent or incapable of administering their own oxygen will be referred to EMS for
transport.

Standees on Lift

Persons who use canes or walkers and other standees with disabilities will be permitted to use the wheelchair lifts provided
they are capable of grasping the lift handrail while self-supporting. Persons incapable of self-supporting while grasping the
lift handrail will be provided the use of a wheelchair if one is available.

Driver Assistance
Drivers will assist passengers with the securement of their mobility devices where necessary or requested by the passenger.

Personal Care Attendants (PCAs)
Personal Care Attendants must reserve a seat on all prescheduled trips. Limitations on the number of PCAs per passenger
are determined by the funding source. Boarding assistance remains the driver’s responsibility in the event that the passenger
is being accompanied by a PCA.

Service Animals

Service animals shall always be permitted to accompany their users in any Ride Solution vehicle or facility. One of the most
common misunderstandings about service animals is that they are limited to being guide dogs for persons

with visual impairments. Dogs are trained to assist people with a wide variety of disabilities, including individuals with
hearing and mobility impairments. Other animals (e.g., monkeys) are sometimes used as service animals as well. In any of
these situations, Ride Solution will permit the animal to accompany its user.

Transfer

The decision of whether to transfer from a mobility device to a vehicle seat remains the option of the passenger. With the
exception of three-wheeled scooters, driver assistance for this activity remains the option of the driver. Passengers using
three wheeled scooters will be required by the driver to transfer to a vehicle seat. Under no circumstances will passengers
with three wheeled scooters be transported while sitting on the scooter.

35



Passenger Sensitivity
All employees of Ride Solution will receive passenger sensitivity training.

Local Complaint and Grievance Procedure/Process

Definition of a Complaint

A complaint is defined as:

“An issue brought to the attention of the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) either verbally or
in writing by a system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, or community service provider/subcontractor
which addresses an issue or several issues concerning transportation services of the CTC or operators used
by the CTC.”

Filing a Complaint

The Community Transportation Coordinator will provide all system user/advocates, sponsoring agencies, and/or community
service providers using Transportation Disadvantaged services a description of and process to be used to make a complaint
to the CTC. The complaint will be filed within 30 working days of the incident. If a system user/advocate, sponsoring
agency, or community service provider/subcontractor has a complaint, the CTC will address each complaint, making
whatever investigation is required to determine the facts in the issue presented and take appropriate action to address each
complaint. Complaints that cannot be resolved by the CTC directly or through mediation with operators and/or sponsoring
agencies can be brought before the County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board Grievance Committee.

Recording of Complaints
The CTC will keep a MEMO OF RECORD file of all complaints received. A copy of the Memo of Record file will be made
available to the Local Coordinating Board on an as needed basis.

Appeal to the Grievance Committee

The CTC shall advise and provide directions to all persons, system user/advocates, sponsoring agencies, and/or community
service providers from which a complaint has been received by the CTC of the right to file a formal written grievance. If
after the CTC attempts to resolve the complaint, the complainant is not satisfied with the action taken by the CTC the
individual should proceed to the next step.

Responsibility of the Local Coordinating Board to Grievances

The Local Coordinating Board shall appoint a Grievance Committee to serve as a mediator to process and investigate
complaints from agencies, users, potential users of the system and the CTC in the designated service area, and make
recommendations to the Local Coordinating Board for improvement of service. The Local Coordinating Board shall
establish procedures to provide regular opportunities for issues to be brought before such committee and to address them in
a timely manner. Members appointed to the committee shall be voting members of the Local Coordinating Board. (Rule
41-2.012, F.A.C))

Definition of a Grievance A

grievance shall be defined as:

“A circumstance or condition thought to be unjust and grounds for bitterness of resentment due to lack of clear
resolution by the CTC through the notice of complaint procedure or due to the seriousness of the grievance.”

Grievance Procedures

The following Grievance Procedures are established for grievances to be brought before the Grievance Committee. When a
passenger, system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service provider/subcontractor has a concern,

36



complaint, or problem relative to transportation services, proper grievance procedures which are described below should be
followed in sequence.

Filing a Grievance

If a passenger, system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service provider/subcontractor has a complaint
as defined in Section 1, the party should first discuss the matter with the staff involved for immediate resolution, if possible.
If no resolution or satisfaction is reached, the individual should proceed to the grievance level.

If a system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service provider/subcontractor has a grievance with the
service; the individual will present the grievance to the CTC within 10 working days from the response of the CTC to the
original complaint. All grievances must be in writing and shall include the following:

1) The name and address of the grievant;

2) Transit route, date and approximate time of incident(s);

3) A statement of the grounds for the grievance and supporting documentation; 4) An explanation of the relief
desired by the grievant.

Facts concerning the grievance should be stated in clear and concise language. If assistance is needed in preparing a written
grievance, assistance will be provided by the CTC staff and/or the designated official planning agency. Within 15 working
days following the date of receipt of the formal grievance, the CTC staff will respond, in writing, to the system user/advocate,
or other party concerning the registered grievance. The CTC’s response shall explain the factors that entered into the decision
and shall identify the action, if any, that will be taken.

The CTC will keep a GRIEVANT RECORD file of all grievances received. A copy of the Record file will be made available
to the Local Coordinating Board on an as needed basis.

Appeal to the Grievance Committee

The decision of the CTC may be appealed to the Grievance Committee of the Local Coordinating Board within 15 working
days of the receipt of the CTC’s final decision. Within 30 working days of receipt of the appeal the Grievance Committee
will meet and make recommendations to the Local Coordinating Board.

The grievant will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the committee meeting at which the appeal will be
heard. This written notice will be mailed at least 10 working days prior to the meeting. The notice shall clearly state the
purpose of the discussion and a statement of issues involved.

A written copy of the recommendation will be forwarded to the Board and all parties involved within 15 working days of
the date of the recommendation. The written recommendation will include the following information:

1. A statement that a meeting was held in which the involved parties, their representatives, and witness were
given an opportunity to present their position;

A statement that clearly defines the issues discussed;

An opinion and reasons for the recommendations based on the information provided;

A finding that the issue affects safety, provision of service, or efficiency; and

A recommendation by the Grievance Committee based on their investigation and findings.

Ui W

Grievance Committee Hearing Procedures
The Grievance Committee agenda shall be conducted in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Call to order - Planning Staff;

37



2. Election of Grievance Committee Chairman - Committee members;

3. Presentation of grievance by planning staff;

4, Presentation of grievance by complainant;

5. Response of party(s) concerned;

6. Discussion of grievance, shall take place in accordance with Robert’s Rule of Order amongst the Grievance
Committee, the complainant and other interested parties. Discussion shall focus solely on the grievance;

7. Following discussion of the grievance, the Grievance Committee shall provide its recommendation to all
interested parties in response to the grievance; and

8. Close hearing.

Recommendation to the Local Coordinating Board

Within 30 working days of the receipt of the recommendation, the Local Coordinating Board will meet and consider the
recommendation. A written copy of the recommendation will be forwarded to the Board and all parties involved within 10
working days of the date of the recommendation.

The grievant will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the Board meeting at which the recommendation will
be presented. This written notice will be mailed at least ten working days prior to the meeting.

38



COST/Revenue Allocation and SERVICE RATES SUMMARY

BASED ON THE COMMISSION’S RATE CALCULATION MODEL

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION COORDINATOR: Ride Solution, Inc.
EFFECTIVE DATE: July 2024
TYPE OF SERVICE TO UNIT (PASSENGER CoST PER UNIT
BE MILE OR TRIP) $
PROVIDED
Ambulatory Passenger Mile $3-47-$4.75
Wheelchair Passenger Mile $5:94-$8.15
Public Transit Trip — In County $1.00
Trip — Out of County $2.00

CTC EVALUATION PROCESS
CTC Evaluation
The Northeast Florida Regional [Planning] Council conducts an annual evaluation of the Putnam County TD program
pursuant to Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code (FAC) and utilizing guidelines established by the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged. This evaluation utilizes, at a minimum, Chapters 5 (Competition), 7 (Cost Effectiveness &

Efficiency) and 12 (Availability) of the Commission’s Workbook for CTC Evaluations. The most recent evaluation is
included as Appendix 7.

CTC Monitoring Procedures of Operators and Coordination Contractors

The Putnam County TD program does not have any sub-contracted operators at this time.

39



Coordination Contract Evaluation Criteria

The Putnam County TD program currently does not have any coordination contracts. However, any future coordination
contracts shall be evaluated on an annual basis and the performance of these coordination contracts shall be included in the
annual joint LCB/Planning Agency evaluation of the CTC.

Planning Agency Evaluation Process

The Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged conducts biennial reviews of the planning agency’s
performance based upon established procedures utilizing staff from the CTD’s Quality Assurance & Program Evaluation
(QAPE) section.

Cost / Revenue Allocation and Rate Structure Justification

The Rate Calculation Model provided by the Florida Commission for Transportation is reviewed and updated annually. The
Rate Calculation Model allows for annual changes to occur based on changes to the level of service, expenditures and
revenues.

Updates and Amendments

Updates
The Local Coordinating Board approves any changes to the TDSP. The NEFRC submits the changes to the Commission after

it has been reviewed and approved by the LCB.
Amendments

Amendments may occur in any section of the TDSP. Amendments are changes that need to be made to the Plan that were
not made during the annual update process. Each year, certain portions of the TDSP should be amended to be current.

40



TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED SERVICE PLAN
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD
ROLL CALL VOTE (PUTNAM COUNTY)

REPRESENTATION MEMBER VOTED | VOTED | ABSENT
FOR | AGAINST | FROM
VOTING
1. Chairperson Comm. Leota Wilkinson
2. Dept. of Transportation Geanelly Reveron / ALT
3. Dept. Of Children and Families Christina Gillis/ ALT
4. Public Education Community Sharon Spell
5. Dept. of Education (Voc. Rehab) Rochelle Price
6. Veteran Services Allen Buquo / ALT
7. Econ. Disadvantaged (Comm. Action) Cyperiannia Murray
8. Elderly VACANT
9. Disabled VACANT
10. Citizen Advocate/User Darlene Laibl-Crowe
11. Citizen Advocate/Non-User Christopher Glymph
12. Children at Risk VACANT
13. Dept. Of Elder Affairs VACANT
14, Private for Profit Transportation Industry VACANT
15. Agency for Health Care Adm. Pamela Hagley / ALT
16. Agency for Persons w/Disabilities Sheryl Stanford / ALT
17. Regional Workforce Dev. Brd. Marc Albert
18. Local Medical Community Nancy Russo

The Coordinating Board hereby certifies that an annual evaluation of this Community Transportation
Coordinator was conducted consistent with the policies of the Commission for the Transportation
Disadvantaged and all recommendations of that evaluation have been incorporated in this Service Plan,
We further certify that the rates contained herein have been thoroughly reviewed, evaluated and
approved. This Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan was reviewed in its entirety and approved
by this Board at an official meeting held on: 09/15/25

09/15/2025
Date Coordinating Board Chairperson

Approved by the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged.

Date Executive Director

41



b. TD 101

Quarter One Quarter Two

Administrative Items

: Administrative Items
R mm.lal CoEOniE RCPOH,(AOR)’ *Annual Public Hearing (see Public Hearing
Requires CTD approval prior to LCB e

approval)

*Annual TDSP review, subject to LCB
amendment and/or approval (Roll Call
Vote)(updated demographics)

*Annual Expenditure Report; drafted with
information from AER. not subject to LCB
review/approval

*Election of LCB Vice Chair

*Election of Grievance Committee

*Election of CTC Evaluation Committee
»*Annual Operations Report (AOR);  <If not

*2025-2026 Rate Model; requires approval DLEE T p-roval) )
from CTD prior to LCB approval *Annual Grievance Procedures Review;
Standing Items Requires LCB approval

*NEFRC Report Standing Items

*Grants Update » NEFRC Update

'SCT(? Rell))ort »Grants Update

; Te]l)wlcoel evelopment/Local Issues \CTC Report

5 yr contract ends June 2026, Present Service Development/Local Issues
board with timeline *ID 101

approved in Q1> Requires CTD approval prior

42

Quarter Three

Administrative Items

*Annual review of LCB by-laws, subject to
LCB amendment and/or approval
*Selection of time and date for CTC Evaluation
(March — April)

*LCB review/approval of members, final
membership review/approval subject to
NEFRC Board of Directors action before
submission to CTD

Standing Items

* NEFRC Report

*Grants Update

*CTC Report

Service Development/Local Issues

*TD 101

Administrative Items

*Review of CTC Evaluation, requires
LCB approval

*Meeting Schedule (Workplan)(Note:
when approved, send to point person in
County to reserve meeting room)(SJ)
Standing Items

* NEFRC Report

*Grants Update

*CTC Report

Service Development/Local Issues
*TD 101

e E—



The “Transportation Disadvantaged”

o o - o000
M an i
OLDER ADULTS PERSONS WITH PEOPLE WITH AT-RISK

DISABILITIES LOW INCOME CHILDREN

43



They Could Need A Ride To...

|
|
|
bl

Yy o A B

Medical Services Work School Grocery Store

44



“The purpose of the commission is to accomplish
the coordination of transportation services | OUR PURPOSE
provided to the transportation disadvantaged”

45



Creation of the
Transportation
Disadvantaged (TD)

Program

Established by the Florida Legislature in 1979.

Intended to ensure TD customers have access to
transportation services across the state.

Created Commission and TD Trust Fund in 1989.

Designated provider network responsible for
inating services in a counties.

Defined “coordination” as services provided in
manner that is “cost-effective, efficient, and
reduces fragmentation or duplication”.

TD Trust Fund subsidizes a part of a TD person’s
transportation “not sponsored” by another agency.

46



TD Non-Sponsored Eligibility
Criteria (adopted in 1997)

No Other Funding Available - Individual has no other purchasing agency
“sponsoring” a trip to a certain activity

No Other Means of Transportation - Individual does not own a vehicle, have a
family member, or others who can provide a trip to an activity.

Public Transit - Individual does not have access to a fixed bus route, or one is
not available in their community, to access an activity.

Disability - Individual has a disability as defined by the ADA that presents a
barrier to transportation.

Age - The individual's age presents a barrier to transportation [the age limit is
defined by the CTC and LCB].

Income - The individual or household income presents a barrier to
transportation [the income threshold is defined by the CTC and LCB].

47



Our Organization: Florida Commission for the

g

Appoints Executive Director and oversees staff in Tallahassee. "

Independent state agency, housed in FL Dept of Transportation (FDOT).

Consists of 11 board members appointed by the Governor.

Administers TD Trust Fund and grant programs that support TD Services.

Adopts policies and rules governing the Coordinated System T l totiOﬂ
' ' Disadvantaged

Designates Community Transportation Coordinators (CTCs) and Planning
Agencies in all 67 counties.

Collects data on TD service operations and presents Annual Report to the
Governor and Legislature (January 1 each year).

Serves as a clearinghouse of information on TD services.

48



ACTIONS DATES #1
Release of RFP 11/4/2025
RFP Questions Due to NEFRC 12/2/2025
NEFRC Response to RFP Questions 1/13/2026
Proposal Submission Deadline 1/27/2026
Oral Presentation (if requested by NEFRC) 2/10/2026
LCB decision on the recommendation of the
top-ranked candidate to the CTD 2/9/2026
NEFRC decision on the recommendation of
the top-ranked candidate to the CTD -
(Executive Committee) 4/2/2026

Commission for Transportation
Disadvantaged makes the final decision for
approval of the top-ranked candidate - (CTD
Meeting)

April-June 2026

CTC Start-Up

7/1/2026

49




From: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Sent: Friday, May 23, 2025 11:43 AM

To: '(boyd@theridesolution.org)' <boyd@theridesolution.org>; Maricarmen Beltran
<mbeltran@theridesolution.org>

Cc: Summer Jones <Sjones@nefrc.org>

Subject: 2024-2025 Putnam Approved Rate Model Extended to FY 2025-2026
Importance: High

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Morning,

Please be informed that your current rates, originally approved on December 30, 2024 for
FY 2024-2025, will be extended through the FY 2025-2026 grant cycle.

Please incorporate these same rates into your FY 2025-2026 grant application with rates
page and don’t forget to submit them as soon as possible.

If you have any questions or need additional guidance, please do not hesitate to reach out.
Thank you,

Dan

Frorighs Covrrresion lor i

Daniel Zeruto

.i‘_.\:—;" (3

F *'?. Transportation Disadvantaged Specialist
| Y A Project Manager — Area 2

Tronsportation Tel: (850) 410-5704

Dizadvantaged Email: Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us

Website: https://ctd.fdot.gov/

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED
605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 49
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Tel: (850) 410-5700 Fax (850) 410-5752

TD Helpline: 1-800-983-2435

From: Zeruto, Dan
Sent: Monday, December 30, 2024 10:57 AM
To: '(boyd@theridesolution.org)' <boyd@theridesolution.org>

50


mailto:Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fctd.fdot.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C8e0d1e0e63ed42c66c1008dd9a10740e%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836117943540441%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TUo4bVEdy9UWw9VUiehwquJeqEVRjmZ%2F65e1ZIapEPE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:boyd@theridesolution.org
mailto:boyd@theridesolution.org

Cc: Maricarmen Beltran <mbeltran@theridesolution.org>; Reginald Johnson
<Reginald@theridesolution.org>; Wanda <Wanda@theridesolution.org>; Summer Jones
<Sjones@nefrc.org>

Subject: 2024-2025 Putnam Approved Rate Model

Importance: High

Good morning Boyd,

| have reviewed the corrections and adjustments made to the attached 2024-25 Rate Model Calculation
Spreadsheet for some of the most common procedural and utilization errors. Items previously noted
have been addressed and it is approved for further review at the local level as appropriate. My review
and opinion does not confirm the validity or accuracy of any financial or operational data elements that
have been entered, nor does it address the reasonableness of the unsubsidized cost of services.

By copy of this email, | am advising your planning agency on our completion of this effort and the
readiness to advance the spreadsheet to the LCB for approval and inclusion in the TDSP update.

When the time comes, | will produce your T/E grant Amendment contract with the passenger mile rates
from this spreadsheet presuming no further changes by the LCB.

A DA 4 T 1T ST T AU 1 A SIS T A I I Lt S AT DA | T

RATES FOR FY: 2024 - 2025

Ambul Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank  Leave Blank
Proj dP. ger Miles [excluding totally d i dd d in Section ll) = 1,776 = 74,000 + TPT7E + + a
Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.75 $8.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

perpassenger  per group

Thank you,

Honied Qovents

Area 3 Project Manager

Florida Commission for Transportation Disadvantaged
605 Suwannee St.,MS 49

Tallahassee, FL 32399-0450

Phone 850-410-5704

Fax 850-410-5752

Email: dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us

_ ==
£ I«
Trinmgartadion

Crasmwtraltagpd

Join us on Facebook or on the web.

51


mailto:mbeltran@theridesolution.org
mailto:Reginald@theridesolution.org
mailto:Wanda@theridesolution.org
mailto:Sjones@nefrc.org
mailto:dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FFloridaCTD&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C8e0d1e0e63ed42c66c1008dd9a10740e%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836117943567510%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7OXJFcWbNcpWS7SXZSXaSESZfjoVb9VZKYpYceziVXA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.dot.state.fl.us%2Fctd&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C8e0d1e0e63ed42c66c1008dd9a10740e%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836117943582196%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MnUD3Jd7QYfKrt8QyZHthJFzx1pNJkSc8Wjsuwx1HBs%3D&reserved=0

Preliminary Information Worksheet Version 1.4

Contact Person:

CTC Name:|Ride Solution
County (Service Area):

Putnam

Boyd Thompson
Phone #|386.325.9999

O
®
O

2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Preliminary lggormation

Governmental
Private Non-Profit

Private For Profit

Check Applicable Characteristic:
ORGANIZATIONAL TYPE:

NETWORK TYPE:
O | Fully Brokered
O | Partially Brokered
® | Sole Source

Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled
"Comprehensive Budget"

Page 1 of 10



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Ride Solution
County: Putnam
1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7
Current Year's
APPROVED Upcoming Year's
Prior Year's Budget, as PROPOSED
ACTUALS amended Budget
from from from Proposed Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS
July 1st of July 1st of July st of v % Change a purchase of service at a unit price.
% Change from
2022 2023 2024 from Prior | Current
® ® © Year to Year to
June 30th of June 30th of June 30th of Current | Upcoming
2023 2024 2025 Year Year Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > + 10% and Also > + $50,000
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

REVENUES (C

Local Non-Govt

Farebox

Medicaid Co-Pay Received
Donations/ Contributions
In-Kind, Contributed Services
Other

Bus Pass Program Revenue

Local Government

District School Board

Compl. ADA Services

County Cash

County In-Kind, Contributed Services
City Cash

City In-kind, Contributed Services
Other Cash

Other In-Kind, Contributed Services
Bus Pass Program Revenue

CTD

Non-Spons. Trip Program
Non-Spons. Capital Equipment
Rural Capital Equipment

Other TD (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

USDOT & FDOT

49 USC 5307

49 USC 5310

49 USC 5311 (Operating)

49 USC 5311(Capital)

Block Grant

Service Development

Commuter Assistance

Other DOT (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

AHCA
Medicaid
Other AHCA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DCF

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health

Family Safety & Preservation

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.
Other DCF (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOH

Children Medical Services

County Public Health

Other DOH (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOE (state)

Carl Perkins

Div of Blind Services

Vocational Rehabilitation

Day Care Programs

Other DOE (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

Wi

WAGES/Workforce Board
Other AWI (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOEA
Older Americans Act
Community Care for Elderly
Other DOEA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue
DCA

Community Services
Other DCA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Admin. Revenue

>

$ 38,866

$ 425,999 | §

425,999 | § 446,993

0.0%

2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Comprehensive Budget

53

4.9%

$38866 in RS reserves

Page 2 of 10



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Ride Solution
County: Putnam
1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

Current Year's
APPROVED Upcoming Year's
Prior Year's Budget, as PROPOSED
ACTUALS amended Budget
from from fom Proposed Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS
July 1st of July 1stof |y tstof W elChange a purchase of service at a unit price.
% Change from
2022 2023 2024 from Prior | Current
o fo o Year to Year to
June 30th of June 30th of June 30th of Current | Upcoming
2023 2024 2025 Year Year Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > + 10% and Also > + $50,000
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Office of Disability Determination
Developmental Services

Other APD (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

(specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

Other Fed or State

Bus Pass Program Revenue |

Other Revenues

Interest Earnings [
XXXX
XXXX
Bus Pass Program Revenue |

Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve |

Balancing Revenue is Short By = _ $ 47,332 m

Total Revenues = $425,999 $425,999 $496,659 0.0% 16.6%

EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ONL' o NOT include Coordination Contractors!)

Operating Expenditures

Labor $ 193,342 § 193,342 § 226,989 0.0% 17.4%
Fringe Benefits $ 82,510 | $ 82,510 | § 49,079 0.0% -40.5%
Services $ 47,432 | $ 47,432 | $ 57,490 0.0% 21.2%
Materials and Supplies $ 70,414 | $ 70,414 | $ 63,398 0.0% -10.0%
Utilities $ 11,264 $ 11,264 § 12,123 0.0% 7.6%
Casualty and Liability $ 57,101 | § 57,101 | § 81,564 0.0% 42.8%
Taxes $ 570 | $ 570 | $ 587 0.0% 3.0%
Purchased Transportation:

Purchased Bus Pass Expenses

School Bus Utilization Expenses

Contracted Transportation Services

Other
Miscellaneous
Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest | $ 4,855 | § 4,855 0.0% -100.0%
Leases and Rentals $ 5843 § 5843  § 5,429 0.0% -7.1%
Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund
In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - 8 -8 =
Allocated Indirect |

Capital Expenditures
Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds
Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue
Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev.
Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest
[
ACTUAL YEAR LOSS (847,332) $47,332
Total Expenditures = $473,331 $473,331 $496,659 0.0% 4.9%

Error: Revenues

See NOTES Below. < Expenditures

Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Budgeted Rate Base"

Page 3 of 10
2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Comprehensive Budget 54



July 1t of

Actual year LOSSES are sh as Balancing R or Local Non-G nment r

Page 4 of 10
2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Comprehensive Budget 55



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Ride Solution
County: Putnam

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's
BUDGETED
Revenues What amount of the
Budgeted Revenue What amount of the
from in col. 2 will be Subsidy Revenue in
generated at the col. 4 will come
July 1t of rate per unit from funds to
2024 determined by this purchase
© OR : Rate i OR will
June 30th of used as local match| Subsidy Revenue|  pe used as match
for these type EXcluded from for the purchase of
2025 enues? the Rate Base i ?
1 2 3 4 5

REVENUES (CTC/Operators ONLY)

Local Non-Govt |
Farebox $ 10,800 $ 10,800 $ - YELLOW cells
Medicaid Co-Pay Received $ - $ - are NEVER Generated by Applying Authorized Rates
Donations/ Contributions $ - $ -

In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - -8 -
Other $ 38,866 $ 38,866 $ L I |
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -

Local Government
District School Board $ - $ -8 - BLUE cells
Compl. ADA Services $ - $ - $ - Should be funds generated by rates in this spreadsheet
County Cash $ B $ -

County In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -
iy Cash s : s B —
City In-kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -
Oter Cash s : s B —
Other In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - S -8 -

CTD local match req. GREEN cells
Non-Spons. Trip Program $ 446,993 $ 446,993 | $ -8 - $ 49,666 MAY BE Revenue Generated by Applying
Non-Spons. Capital Equipment $ - $ - $ -8 - $ - Authorized Rate per Mile/Trip Charges
Rural Capital Equipment s - $ -8 - 8 - s -

s N I N — N —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ ) - Fill in that portion of budgeted revenue in Column 2 that will be

USDOT & FDOT GENE_RATED thr_oug!\ the app_llcatlon of aufhorlzed per mile,

per trip, or combination per trip plus per mile rates. Also,

49 USC 5307 $ - $ - 8 - I include the amount of funds that are Earmarked as local match

49 USC 5310 $ - $ -8 - 8 - $ - for Ti rtation Servi d NOT Capital Equi t

49 USG 5311 (Operating) s . St . for Transportation Services an apital Equipment

49 USC 5311(Capital) s - B s - s - s - | purchases.

Block Grant $ - S -8 -

Service Development $ - $ - $ - If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match

Commuter Assistance $ - $ -3 - Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox

Other DOT $ - $ - Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 - on any state or federal grants. This does not mean that
AHCA Farebox is the only source for Local Match.

Medicaid S - $ -8 - . T

Other AHCA s - s B R | Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ B - containing State and/or Federal funds for the proper Match
DCF Requirement levels and allowed sources.

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health $ - $ -8 -

Family Safety & Preservation $ - $ -8 -

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv. S - $ -8 -

OterDOF s : — B — GOLD el

Bus Pass Program Revenue s - $ -8 -

DOH Fill in that portion of Rate i in
Children Medical Services $ - $ -s - Column 4 that will come from Funds Earmarked by the Funding
County Public Health $ - $ -8 - Source for P ing Capital i Also include the
Other DOH $ - s -1 portion of Local Funds earmarked as Match related to the
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ - - Purchase of Capital Equipment if a match amount is required

DOE (state) by the Funding Source.

Carl Perkins S - $ -8 -
Div of Blind Services S - $ -8 -
Vocational Rehabiltation $ - $ -8 -
Day Care Programs S - S -8 -
s : — B —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - B -8 -

AWI
WAGES/Workforce Board S - $ -8 -

A s - — o —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
DOEA
Older Americans Act S - $ -8 -
Community Care for Elderly $ - $ -8 -
Oter DOEA s . s B —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ - -
DCA
Community Services $ - $ - % -
Oir 0CA s : s N —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ $ -
Page 5 of 10

2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Budgeted Rate Base 56



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet

Version 1.4 CTC: Ride Solution
County: Putnam

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's
BUDGETED
Revenues What amount of the
Budgeted Revenue What amount of the
from in col. 2 will be Subsidy Revenue in
enerated at the col. 4 will come
July 1t of e per unit from funds to
2024 determined by this purchase
© OR igeted Rate i OR wil
June 30th of used as local match| Subsidy Revenue|  pe used as match
for these type EXcluded from for the purchase of
2025 enues? the Rate Base i ?
1 2 3 4 5
APD
Office of Disability Determination $ - $ -8 -
Developmental Services S - $ -8 -
s - — B —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
DJJ
ou s S I — ] —
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
Other Fed or State
XX s - $ -
0 s - $ -
X000 s - $ ,
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
Other Revenues
Interest Earnings s - $ -8 -
XXXX $ - $ -
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit
Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve | § - $ -1s - |
Total Revenues = _§$ 496,659 $ 496,659 $ - $ -
EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ONLY) $ -
Operating Expenditures Amount of
Labor $ 226,989 Budgeted
Fringe Benefits B 49,079 Operating Rate
Services s 57,490 Subsidy Revenue
Materials and Supplies B 63,398
Utilities $ 12,123
Casualty and Liability B 81,564
Taxes $ 587
Purchased Transportation:
Purchased Bus Pass Expenses S -
School Bus Utilization Expenses $ -
Contracted Transportation Services $ -
Other $ -
Miscellaneous S -
Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest | $ -
Leases and Rentals B 5,429
Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund | $ -
In-Kind, Contributed Services $ -
Allocated Indirect $ -
1 Rate Base Adjustment Cell
Capital Expenditures
Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds $ - If necessary and justified, this cell is where you
Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue $ - could optionally adjust proposed service rates
Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev. | $ - up or down to adjust for program revenue (or
Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest $ - unapproved profit), or losses from the Actual
period shown at the bottom of the
$ - Comprehensive Budget Sheet. This is not the
—_— only acceptable location or method of
Total Expenditures = $ 496,659 $ reconciling for excess gains or losses. If

minus EXCLUDED Subsidy Revenue = g
Budgeted Total Expenditures INCLUDED in
Rate Base = g 496,659

Rate Base Adjustment’

Adjusted Expenditures Included in Rate

allowed by the respective funding sources,
excess gains may also be adjusted by providing
system subsid: or by the p of
additional trips in a period following the Actual
period. If such an adjustment has been made,
provide ion in the respecti i

area of the Comprehensive Budget tab.

Base= § 496,659
' The Difference between Expenses and Revenues for Fiscal Year: 2022 - 2023
Once Completed, Proceed to the entitled "Prog ide Rates"

2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Budgeted Rate Base

57

Page 6 of 10



Worksheet for Program-wide Rates CTC:  Ride Solution  Version 1.4
County: Putnam

1. Complete Total Projected Passenger Miles and ONE-WAY Passenger Trips (GREEN cells) below

Do NOT include trips or miles related to Coordination Contractors!

Do NOT include School Board trips or miles UNLESS...........

INCLUDE all ONE-WAY passenger trips and passenger miles related to services you purchased from your transportation operators!
Do NOT include trips or miles for services provided to the general public/private pay UNLESS..

Do NOT include escort activity as passenger trips or passenger miles unless charged the full rate for service!

Do NOT include fixed route bus program trips or passenger miles!

PROGRAM-WIDE RATES

Total Projected Passenger Miles = 91,776 Fiscal Year
Rate Per Passenger Mile = $ 5.41 2024 - 2025

Total Projected Passenger Trips = 8,590

Rate Per Passenger Trip= $ 57.82 Avg. Passenger Trip Length = 10.7 Miles

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy
Funds

Rate Per Passenger Mile = $ 5.41

Rate Per Passenger Trip= $ 57.82

Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Multiple Service Rates”

Vehicle Miles
The miles that a vehicle is scheduled to or actually travels from the time it pulls out from its garage to go into revenue service to the time it pulls in from revenue service.

Vehicle Revenue Miles (VRM)
The miles that vehicles are scheduled to or actually travel while in revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles exclude:

Deadhead

Operator training, and

Vehicle maintenance testing, as well as
School bus and charter services.

Passenger Miles (PM)
The cumulative sum of the distances ridden by each passenger.

Page 7 of 10
2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Program-wide Rates 58



Combination Trip and Mile Rate

Page 8 of 10
2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Multiple Service Rates




Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates CTC: Ride Solution  Version 1.4

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section | for all services County:  Putnam

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

SECTION lll: Escort Service

1. Do you want to charge all escorts a fee? O Yes
@® No
Skip #2 -4 and

Section IV and
Go to Section V

2. If you answered Yes to #1, do you want to charge the fee per passenger trip OR ............. ® Pass. Trip Leave Blank
per passenger mile?.............cco........ O Pass. Mile

3. If you answered Yes to # 1 and completed # 2, for how many of the projected

Passenger Trips / Passenger Miles will a passenger be accompanied by an escort? \ Leave Blank
4. How much will you charge each escort?. Leave Blank

SECTION IV: Group Service Loading CDD‘;";EQ
1. If the message "You Must Complete This Section" appears to the right, what is the projected total Section IV
number of Group Service Passenger Miles? (otherwise leave blank).....
Loading Rate
.......... And what is the projected total number of Group Vehicle Revenue Miles? \ 0.00 to 1.00

SECTION V: Rate Calculations for Mulitple Services:
1. Input Projected Passenger Miles and Passenger Trips for each Service in the GREEN cells and the Rates for each Service will be calculated automatically
* Miles and Trips you input must sum to the total for all Services entered on the "Program-wide Rates" Worksheet, MINUS miles
and trips for contracted services IF the rates were calculated in the Section Il above

* Be sure to leave the service BLANK if you answered NO in Section | or YES to question #2 in Section Il
RATES FOR FY: 2024 - 2025

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
Projected Passenger Miles (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section Il) = 91,776 = ‘ 74,000 + ‘ 17,776 + ‘ + 0
Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.75 $8.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
Projected Passenger Trips (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section Il) = 8,590 = ‘ 6,625 + ‘ 1,965 + ‘ + ‘
Rate per Passenger Trip = $49.70 $85.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group
2 If you answered # 1 above and want a COMBINED Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,... Combination Trip and Mile Rate
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
...INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above) = | [ | | $0.00
Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance = $4.75 $8.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy Fun

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.75 $8.15 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
perpassenger  per group
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Rate per Passenger Trip = $49.70 $85.20 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

per passenger per group

60

Page 9 of 10

2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Multiple Service Rates



Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates CTC: Ride Solution

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section | for all services County:  Putnam

Version 1.4

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

61

Page 10 of 10
2025-2026 Putnam Rate Model Approved: Multiple Service Rates



	Putnam County
	Transportation Disadvantaged
	Local Coordinating Board (LCB) Quarterly Meeting
	MEETING AGENDA
	Monday, September 15, 2025, at 10:30 a.m.
	3a.2025-05-19_PutnamLCB_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT.pdf
	Putnam County Transportation Disadvantaged
	Local Coordinating Board Quarterly Meeting
	Monday, May 19, 2025
	M I N U T E S

	4.TD_Membership_Roster_25-26_as_of_2025-09-09.pdf
	Putnam

	5a1.Putnam 2021-26 TDSP  PENDING September '25.pdf
	SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN ......................................................................................... 4
	SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS ........................................................................................... 22
	SECTION 3: SERVICE PLAN ..................................................................................................... 28
	SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE ....................................................................................... 39
	SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program
	Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date/History
	Local Government Comprehensive Plan
	Strategic Regional Policy Plan
	Mobility Planning
	Regional Transit Action Plan

	Public Participation
	SERVICE AREA PROFILE/DEMOGRAPHICS
	Putnam County BEBR Population Estimates and Projections
	Putnam County Population - 5-year Estimates and Projections

	Statistics Related to County Population Age 60+
	Number of Homeless Students PK‐12 in Putnam County
	Employment
	Overview of Land Use, Population/Composition and Employment

	Major Trip Generators/Attractors
	Inventory of Available Transportation Services



	SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS
	Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population
	Needs Assessment
	Barriers to Coordination
	Performance Measures


	SECTION 3: SERVICE PLAN
	LCB Prioritization Policy for Non-Sponsored Trips by Trip Purpose
	Priority Order Trip Purposes – Categories and Definitions

	Types, Hours and Days of Service
	Accessing Services
	Eligibility of Riders

	Transportation Operators and Coordination Contractors
	Public Transit Utilization
	School Bus Utilization
	Intercounty Services
	Educational Efforts/Marketing
	Service Standards
	Drug and Alcohol Testing
	Transport of Escorts and Dependent Children
	Use, Responsibility and Cost of Child Restraint Devices
	Passenger Property
	Local Toll Free Telephone Number
	Vehicle Cleanliness
	Passenger/Trip Database
	Driver Identification
	Passenger Assistance
	Passenger No-Shows
	Air Conditioning/Heating of Vehicles
	CPR / First Aid
	Driver Background Screening
	Contract Monitoring
	Pick-up Window
	Accidents
	Passenger Behavior
	ADA Policies
	Life Support Systems
	Standees on Lift
	Driver Assistance
	Personal Care Attendants (PCAs)
	Service Animals
	Transfer


	Local Complaint and Grievance Procedure/Process
	Definition of a Complaint
	Filing a Complaint
	Recording of Complaints
	Appeal to the Grievance Committee
	Responsibility of the Local Coordinating Board to Grievances

	Grievance Procedures
	Filing a Grievance
	Appeal to the Grievance Committee
	Grievance Committee Hearing Procedures
	Recommendation to the Local Coordinating Board



	SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE
	CTC Evaluation
	Coordination Contract Evaluation Criteria
	Planning Agency Evaluation Process
	Cost / Revenue Allocation and Rate Structure Justification

	Updates and Amendments
	Updates
	Amendments



	5c.Putnam_Draft RFP Timeline.pdf
	Sheet1

	6b1.Zeruto Email- 25-26 Rate Model Approved.pdf
	From: Zeruto, Dan  Sent: Monday, December 30, 2024 10:57 AM To: '(boyd@theridesolution.org)' <boyd@theridesolution.org> Cc: Maricarmen Beltran <mbeltran@theridesolution.org>; Reginald Johnson <Reginald@theridesolution.org>; Wanda <Wanda@theridesolutio...




